
 

-1 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VSO ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

With Independent Auditors’ Review Report  

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Address: 7F.,  No. 880, Zhongzheng Rd., Zhonghe Dist. ,  New Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C.   

Telephone: 02-3234-3038 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the independent auditors’ report and 

the accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese 

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the 

English version and the original Chinese version or any differences in the interpretation of the two 

versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail. 

 

 

Stock Code: 6913 



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE) 

 
 

-2 - 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  

VSO Electronics Co., Ltd. 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of September 30,2025 and 2024, and the related 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three months ended and the nine 

months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, and changes in equity and cash flows for the nine 

months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the 

“consolidated financial statements”). Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International 

Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. Our responsibility is to express a 

conclusion on the consolidated financial statements based on our reviews. 

Scope of Review 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our reviews in accordance 

with the Standards on Review Engagements of the Republic of China 2410 “Review of Interim 

Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of 

consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible 

for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A 

review is substantially less in scope than an audit and consequently does not enable us to obtain 

assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 

audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

As disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of 

certain non-significant subsidiaries, including VSO (Viet nam) Electronics Co., Ltd. and Vsovn 
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Electronics (HANOI) Company Limited, which were included in the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements, were not reviewed by independent auditors. As of September 30, 2025 and 

2024, the total assets of these non-significant subsidiaries amounted to NT$333,158 thousand 

and NT$272,918 thousand, respectively, representing 12.59% and 11.82% of the consolidated 

total assets, and their total liabilities amounted to NT$69,923 thousand and NT$39,187 thousand, 

espectively, representing 6.49% and 4.86% of the consolidated total liabilities. 

The total comprehensive income of these subsidiaries for the three-month and nine-month 

periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, amounted to NT$7,683 thousand, NT$2,869 

thousand, NT$(46,975) thousand, and NT$15,549 thousand, respectively, representing 7.54%, 

5.04%, (44.37)%, and 11.05%, respectively, of the consolidated total comprehensive income. 

As further disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the carrying amounts of 

investments accounted for under the equity method by VSO Electronics Co., Ltd. and its 

subsidiaries as of September 30, 2025 and 2024 were NT$46,514 thousand and NT$48,556 

thousand, respectively. The Group’s share of comprehensive income from associates recognized 

for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, and the nine-month periods 

ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, amounted to NT$2,347 thousand, NT$1,347 thousand, 

NT$(921) thousand, and NT$3,169 thousand, respectively. These amounts were recognized and 

disclosed based on the associates’ financial statements for the respective periods, which were not 

reviewed by independent auditors. 

In addition, as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, certain 

investment-related information pertaining to the above-mentioned subsidiaries and associates 

was also not reviewed by independent auditors. 

 

Qualified Conclusion 

Based on our reviews, except for the possible effects of any adjustments that might have been 

determined to be necessary had the financial statements of the non-significant subsidiaries and 

related parties mentioned in the preceding paragraph been reviewed, nothing has come to our 

attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying consolidated financial statements do 

not present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of 

September 30, 2025 and 2024, the consolidated financial performance for the periods from July 

1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, and the consolidated financial performance and consolidated 

cash flows for the periods from January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, in accordance with 

the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and 

International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” as endorsed and made 

effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
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The engagement partners on the reviews resulting in this independent auditors’ review report are 

Yeh Shu-Chuan and Huang Kuo-Ning. 

 

Deloitte & Touche  

Taipei, Taiwan  

Republic of China 

 

Nov. 11 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Notice to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in 

the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to review 

such consolidated financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China. 

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ review report and the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the 

Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any 

difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ review report and 

consolidated financial statements shall prevail. 
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 VSO ELECTRONICS CO.,  LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

September  30,  2025 and December 31,  2024 and September 30,2024  

(AMO UNT S EX PRESSE D IN  THOU SA ND S OF NEW TA I WAN D OLLAR S)  

  

     September 30, 2025   December 31, 2024   September 30, 2024 

 Code   Assets  Amount  %  Amount  %  Amount  % 

   Current Assets             
 1100   Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 6)     $  547,631      21     $  320,793      13     $  644,627      28 
 1110   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 

current (Notes 7 and 30) 
 

    5,114      -      5,056      -      5,037      - 
 1136   Financial assets measured at amortized cost - current 

(Notes 8, 30, and 32) 
 

    428      -      338,208      14      62,277      3 
 1150   Notes receivable (Notes 9 and 23)      2,912      -     8,052      -      4,724      - 
 1170   Accounts Receivable (Notes 9 and 23)      941,205      35      762,301      32      655,846      28 
 1180   Accounts Receivable - Related Parties (Notes 9, 23, and 

31) 
 

    42,919      2      41,681      2      39,682      2 
 1200   Other receivables (Notes 9 and 30)      2,457      -      2,933      -      4,461      - 
 1210   Other Receivables - Related Parties (Note 31)      22      -      -      -      17      - 
 1220   Current Income Tax Assets      439      -      2,366      -      2,874      - 
 130X   Inventories (Note 10)      289,365      11      231,983     10      227,801      10 
 1470   Other Current Assets (Note 16)      24,111      1      26,805      1      14,973      1 
 11XX   Total Current Assets      1,856,603      70      1,740,178      72      1,662,319      72 
                                 
   Non-current assets             
 1550   Equity Method Investments (Note XII)      46,514      2      48,495      2      48,556      2 
 1600   Property, plant, and equipment (Notes 13, 28, 32, and 

33) 
 

    587,203      22      417,009      17      402,487      18 
 1755   Right-of-use assets (Notes 14 and 32)      103,818      4      120,477      5      123,273      5 
 1780   Intangible Assets (Notes 15 and 33)     18,015      1      23,302      1      25,174      1 
 1840   Deferred income tax assets      11,014      -      9,052      1      6,772      - 
 1900   Other Non-Current Assets (Notes 16 and 32)      23,435      1      42,082      2      40,202      2 
 15XX   Total Non-Current Assets      789,999      30      660,417      28      646,464      28 
                                 
 1XXX   Total Assets     $  2,646,602      100     $  2,400,595      100     $  2,308,783      100 
               
 Code   Liabilities and Equity             

   Current Liabilities             
2100   Short-term borrowings (Notes 17, 28, 29, and 32)     $  143,330      6     $  34,750      1     $  89,989      4 
 2120   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 

current (Notes 7 and 30) 
 

    7,369      -      -      -      -      - 
 2130   Contract liabilities - current (Note 23)      1,156      -      1,042      -      112      - 
 2170   Accounts Payable (Note 18)      420,673      16      371,451      16      330,814      14 
 2180   Accounts Payable - Related Parties (Note 31)      1,367      -      2,531      -      -      - 
 2200   Other Payables (Note 19)      317,665      12      286,133      12      277,022     12 
 2220   Other Payables - Related Parties (Note 31)      72      -      701      -      942      - 
 2230   Current Income Tax Liability      24,762      1      14,148      1      14,991      1 
 2,250   Provision for Liabilities - Current (Note 20)      2,687      -      2,107      -      1,820      - 
 2280   Lease liabilities - current (Notes 14 and 29)      9,195      -      7,545      -      8,629      1 
 2300   Other current liabilities (Notes 19, 23, and 28)      4,630      -      4,774      -      3,770      - 
 21XX   Total Current Liabilities      932,906      35      725,182      30      728,089      32 
                                 
  Non-current liabilities             
 2540   Long-term borrowings (Notes 17, 28, and 29)      58,509      2      9,853      1      -      - 
 2570   Deferred income tax liabilities      76,531      3      74,317      3      68,778      3 
 2580   Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 14 and 29)      9,506      1      8,868      -      9,647      - 
 2640   Other Non-Current Liabilities (Note 19)      487      -      105      -      -      - 
 25XX   Total Non-Current Liabilities      145,033      6      93,143      4      78,425      3 
                                 
 2XXX    Total Liabilities      1,077,939      41      818,325      34      806,514      35 
                                 
   Equity (Note 22)             
   Equity of the Company             
 3110   Share Capital - Common Shares      438,488      17      417,165      17      416,203      18 
 3200   Capital reserve      568,361      21      565,514      24      562,814      24 
   Retained Earnings             
 3310   Legal reserve      105,221      4      86,676      3      86,676      4 
 3320   Special Surplus Reserve      34,452      1      52,481      2      52,481      2 
 3350   Retained earnings      446,314      17     402,057      17      322,977      14 
 3300   Total Retained Earnings      585,987      22      541,214      22      462,134      20 
 3400   Other equity    (  85,508 )    (  3 )    (  34,451 )    (  1)    (  29,259 )    (  1 ) 
 3500   Treasury stock    (  28,969 )    (  1)      -      -      -      - 
 31XX   Total Equity Attributable to Owners of the 

Company 
 

    1,478,359      56      1,489,442      62      1,411,892      61 
 36XX   Non-controlling interests      90,304      3      92,828      4     90,377      4 
 3XXX   Total Equity      1,568,663      59      1,582,270      66      1,502,269      65 
                                 
   Total Liabilities and Equity     $  2,646,602      100     $  2,400,595      100     $  2,308,783      100 

 

 The accompanying notes  form an integra l  part  of  these consolidated financial  s tatements .  

 (Please re fer to the review report  dated  November 10 ,  2025,  issued by Deloit te  & Touche LLC)  
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VSO ELECTRONICS CO. ,  LTD.  AND SUBSIDIARIES  

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS AND NINE MONTHS ENDED September  30 ,  2025  AND 2024   

( A M O U N T S  I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  N E W TA I WA N  D O L L A R S ,  E X C E P T  F O R  E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E )  

    For the Three Months Ended September 30  For the Nine Months Ended September 30 

    2025 2024  2025  2024 

 Code     Amount   %   Amount   %   Amount   %   Amount   % 

 4000   Net Operating Revenue (Notes 
23, 31, and 36) 

 
   $  726,974      100     $  572,335      100     $ 1,953,480      100    $  1,511,319  

   
 100 

 5000   Cost of Sales (Notes 10, 15, 24, 
and 31) 

 
    522,486      72      412,768      72      1,410,093      72      1,116,081      74 

 5900   Gross Profit      204,488      28      159,567      28     543,387      28      395,238      26 
   Operating Expenses (Notes 9, 

15, 24, and 31) 
 

               
 6100   Selling Expenses      34,228      5      26,063      5      91,136      5      72,909      5 
 6200   Administrative Expenses      51,938      7      42,878      7      148,817      8      119,189      8 
 6300   Research and 

Development Expenses 
 

    35,107      5      28,505      5      90,033      4      65,150      4 
 6450   Expected Credit Losses 

(Reversal Gains) 
 

  (  665 )      -    (  814 )     -    (  416 )      -      1,013      - 
 6000   Total Operating 

Expenses 
 

    120,608      17      96,632      17      329,570      17      258,261      17 
 6900   Net Operating Profit      83,880      11      62,935      11      213,817      11      136,977      9 
   Non-operating income and 

expenses 
 

               
 7100   Interest Income (Note 24)      1,882      -      1,338      -      6,593      -     5,794      - 
 7010   Other Income (Notes 24 

and 28) 
 

    3,365      -      667      -      6,408      -      3,387      - 
 7050   Financial Expenses (Notes 

24 and 28) 
 

  (  2,511 )      -    (  1,511 )      -    (  5,367 )      -    (  4,203 )      - 
 7060   Share of profit or loss of 

associates accounted for 
using the equity method 

 

    361      -      482      -      1,249      -      1,082      - 
 7210   Other gains and losses 

(Notes 7 and 24) 
 

    3,573      1    (  6,052 )    (  1)    (  22,748 )    (  1 )      9,282     1 
 7000   Total Non-Operating 

Income and 
Expenses 

 

    6,670      1    (  5,076 )    (  1 )    (  13,865 )    ( 1 )      15,342      1 
 7900   Pre-tax profit      90,550      12      57,859      10      199,952      10      152,319      10 
 7950   Income tax expense (Note 25)    (  18,033 )    (  2 )       12,056 )    (  2 )   (   40,275 )    (  2 )       37,285)    (  3 ) 
                                           
 8200   Net Profit for the Period      72,517      10      45,803      8      159,677      8      115,034      7 
 8300   Other Comprehensive Income 

(Note 22) 
 

               
 8360   Items that may 

subsequently be 
reclassified to profit or 
loss 

 

               
 8361   Foreign currency 

translation 
differences on 
financial statements 
of foreign operations 

 

    27,449      4      10,256      2    (  51,624 )    (  3 )      23,605      2 
 8370   Share of other 

comprehensive 
income of associates 
and joint ventures 
accounted for using 
the equity method 

 

    1,986      -     865      -    (  2,170 )      -      2,087      - 
 8500   Total Comprehensive Income 

for the Period 
 

   $  101,952      14     $  56,924      10     $  105,883      5     $  140,726      9 
                                           
   Net profit attributable to:                 
 8610   Company owners     $  68,307      9     $  42,759      7     $  149,064      8     $  106,363      7 
 8620   Non-controlling interests      4,210      1      3,044     1      10,613      -      8,671      1 
 8600       $  72,517      10     $  45,803      8     $  159,677      8     $  115,034      8 
   Total comprehensive income 

attributable to: 
 

               
 8710   Company owners     $  95,178      13     $  52,832      9     $  98,007      5     $  129,585      8 
 8720   Non-controlling interests      6,774      1      4,092      1      7,876      -      11,141      1 
 8700       $  101,952      14    $  56,924      10     $  105,883      5     $  140,726      9 
   Earnings per Share (Note 26)                 
 9710   Basic     $  1.57          $  1.07          $  3.41          $  2.67      
 9810   Diluted     $  1.56          $  1.06          $  3.40          $  2.65      

 
 T h e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  f o r m  a n  i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h e s e  c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s .  

 ( P l e a s e  r e f e r  t o  t h e  r e v i e w  r e p o r t  d a t e d  N o v e m b e r  1 0 ,  2 0 2 5 ,  i s s u e d  b y  D e l o i t t e  T o u c h e  T o h m a t s u  C P A  F i r m )
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VSO ELECTRONICS CO. ,  LTD.  AND SUBSIDIARIES  

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

 FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED September  30 ,  2 02 5  AND 2024  

(AMO UNT S EX PRESSE D IN  THOU SA ND S OF NEW TA I WAN D OLLAR S)  

 

     Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent Company     

    

Share Capital (Note 22)   Capital Surplus   Retained Earnings (Notes 22 and 25)  

Exchange 
differences on 
translation of 

foreign 
operations      

 Non-controlling 
interests   

 
Code 

    Number of 
Shares 

(Thousands)  
 Common stock 

capital   (Note 22)   Legal Reserve  
 Special Surplus 

Reserve  
 Retained 
Earnings   (Note 22)   Treasury Stock   Total   (Note 22)   Total Equity 

 A1   Balance as of January 1, 2024      37,530     $  375,302     $  227,844     $  75,181     $  40,666     $  315,846    ( $  52,481 )     $  -     $  982,358     $  87,594     $  1,069,952 
                                                          
   112 Annual Surplus Appropriation and 

Distribution 
 

                     
 B1   Legal Reserve      -      -      -      11,495      -    (  11,495 )      -      -      -     -      - 
 B3   Special Surplus Reserve      -      -      -      -      11,815    (  11,815 )      -      -      -      -      - 
 B5   Cash Dividends to Shareholders      -      -      -      -      -    (  75,921 )      -      -    (  75,921 )      -    (  75,921 ) 
 E1   Cash Capital Increase      3,660      36,600      328,977      -     -      -      -      -      365,577      -      365,577 
 N1   Employee stock option compensation expense      -      -      1,733      -      -      -      -      -      1,733      -      1,733 
 N1   Common shares issued under the employee 

stock option plan 
 

    430      4,301      4,301      -      -      -     -      -      8,602      -      8,602 
 M7   Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries      -      -    (  41 )      -      -    (  1 )      -      -    (  42 )      42      - 
 O1   Subsidiary distributes cash dividends to 

non-controlling interest shareholders 
 

    -      -      -      -      -      -     -      -      -    (  8,400 )    (  8,400 ) 
 D1   Net Profit from January 1 to September 30, 2024      -      -      -      -      -      106,363      -      -      106,363      8,671      115,034 
 D3   Other Comprehensive Income After Tax for the 

Period from January 1 to September 30, 2024 
 

    -      -      -      -      -      -      23,222     -      23,222      2,470      25,692 
                                                          
 Z1   Balance as of September 30, 2024      41,620     $  416,203     $  562,814     $  86,676     $  52,481     $  322,977    ( $  29,259 )     $  -     $ 1,411,892     $  90,377     $ 1,502,269 
                                                          
 A1   Balance as of January 1, 2025      41,716     $  417,165     $  565,514     $  86,676    $  52,481     $  402,057    ( $  34,451 )     $  -     $ 1,489,442     $  92,828     $ 1,582,270 
   Appropriation and Distribution of 2011 Surplus                       
 B1   Legal Reserve      -      -      -      18,545      -    (  18,545 )      -      -      -      -      - 
 B3   Special Surplus Reserve      -      -      -      -    (  18,029 )      18,029      -      -      -     -      - 
 B5   Cash Dividends to Shareholders      -      -      -      -      -    (  83,433 )      -      -    (  83,433 )      -    (  83,433 ) 
 B9   Stock Dividends to Shareholders      2,086      20,858      -      -      -    (  20,858 )      -      -      -      -      - 
 C17   Exercise of the right of reversion      -      -      256      -     -      -      -      -      256      -      256 
 N1   Employee stock option compensation expense      -      -      1,661      -      -      -      -      -      1,661      -      1,661 
 N1   Common shares issued under the employee 

stock option plan 
 

    46      465      930      -      -      -     -      -      1,395      -      1,395 
 L1   Purchase of treasury shares      -      -      -      -      -      -      -    (  28,969 )    (  28,969 )      -    (  28,969 ) 
 M7   Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries      -      -      -      -      -      -     -      -      -      -      - 
 O1   Subsidiary distributes cash dividends to 

non-controlling interest shareholders 
 

    -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -    (  10,400 )    (  10,400 ) 
                                                          
 D1   Net Profit from January 1 to September 30, 2025      -      -      -      -      -      149,064      -     -      149,064      10,613      159,677 
                                                          
 D3   January 1 to September 30, 2025 Other 

Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 
 

    -      -      -      -      -      -    (  51,057 )      -    (  51,057 )    (  2,737 )    (  53,794 ) 
                                                          
 Z1   Balance as of September 30, 2025      43,848     $  438,488     $  568,361     $  105,221     $  34,452    $  446,314    ( $  85,508 )    ( $  28,969 )     $ 1,478,359     $  90,304     $ 1,568,663 
 

 The  accompanying  note s  form an in tegra l  part  o f  these  co nsol i date d f ina nc ia l  s ta teme nts .  
 (P lease  ref er  to  the  re vi ew repo rt  date d Novembe r  10 ,  2025 ,  i ssued by  Delo i t te  Touche Tohmatsu CP A Firm)  
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 VSO ELECTRONICS CO. ,  LTD.  AND SUBSIDIARIES  

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED September 30 ,  2025  AND 2024  

(AMO UNT S EX PRESSE D IN  THOU SA ND S OF NEW TA I WAN D OLLAR S)  

 

     For the Nine Months Ended September 30 
Code    2025  2024 

   Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities     

 

A10000 

  Net Income Before Taxes for the 

Period     $ 199,952     $ 152,319 

   Revenue, Fees, and Loss Items     

 

A20100 

  Depreciation Expense 

     50,188      37,900 

 

A20200 

  Amortization expense 

     8,217      6,587 

 

A20300 

  Expected Credit Loss 

(Recovery Benefit) 

Impairment Loss    (  416 )      1,013 

 

A20900 

  Financial Costs 

    5,367      4,203 

 

A21200 

  Interest Income 

   (  6,593 )    (  5,794 ) 

 

A21900 

  Share-based compensation 

expense      1,661      1,733 

 

A23700 

  Inventory Write-Downs and 

Obsolescence Losses      11,985      - 

 

A23800 

  Reversal of inventory 

impairment and obsolescence 

losses      -    (  21,448 ) 

 

A20400 

  Net loss on financial assets and 

liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss      369      749 

 

A22300 

  Share of profit or loss of 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using the equity 

method    (  1,249 )    (  1,082 ) 

 

A22500 

  Gain on disposal of property, 

plant, and equipment    (  340 )    (  473 ) 

 

A29900 

  Government Subsidy Revenue 

   (  401 )    (  197 ) 

 

A29900 

  Loss on disposal of right-of-use 

assets      1,380      - 

 

A30000 

  Net Change in Operating Assets and 

Liabilities     

 

A31115 

  Financial assets mandatorily 

measured at fair value through 

profit or loss      7,358      - 

 

A31130 

  Notes receivable 

     4,839    (  2,568 ) 
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A31150 

 Accounts Receivable 

   (  190,146 )    (  136,183 ) 

 

A31160 

  Accounts Receivable - Related 

Parties    (  2,540 )    (  3,300 ) 

 

A31180 

  Other Receivables 

   (  161 )    (  1,223 ) 

 

A31190 

  Other Receivables - Related 

Parties    (  22 )    (  17 ) 

 

A31200 

  Inventory 

   (  83,445 )    (  45,224 ) 

 

A31240 

  Other Current Assets 

     1,481    (  4,423 ) 

 

A31990 

  Other Non-Current Assets 

     247    (  11 ) 

 

A32110 

  Financial liabilities held for 

trading    (  416 )    (  872 ) 

 

A32125 

  Contractual Liabilities 

     163    (  260 ) 

 

A32150 

  Accounts Payable 

     66,240      56,915 

 

A32160 

  Accounts Payable - Related 

Parties    (  1,074 )    (  633 ) 

 

A32180 

  Other Payables 

     18,743      25,682 

 

A32190 

  Other Payables - Related Parties 

   (  584 )      291 

 

A32200 

  Provision for Liabilities 

     626      481 

 

A32230 

  Other Current Liabilities 

   (  63 )    (  1,252 ) 

 

A33000 

  Cash generated from operations 

     91,366      62,913 

 

A33500 

  Income taxes paid 

   (  12,909 )    (  45,239 ) 

 

AAAA 

  Net Cash Provided by 

Operating Activities      78,457      17,674 

             

   Cash Flows from Investing Activities     

 

B00100 

  Acquisition of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss      -    (  7,500 ) 

 

B00200 

  Disposal of Financial Assets 

Measured at Fair Value Through 

Profit or Loss      -     26,434 

 

B00040 

  Acquisition of financial assets 

measured at amortized cost    (  895,446 )    (  62,956 ) 

 

B00050 

  Disposal of financial assets 

measured at amortized cost     1,233,208      88,235 

 

B02700 

  Acquisition of property, plant, and 

equipment    (  208,449 )    (  71,232 ) 

 

B02800 

  Proceeds from Disposal of Real 

Estate, Plant, and Equipment      1,040      1,049 
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B03700 

  Increase in Deposited Guarantees 

   (  165 )      - 

 

B03800 

  Decrease in Margin Deposits 

     -      3,053 

 

B04500 

  Purchase of Intangible Assets 

   (  3,285 )    (  11,374 ) 

 

B05350 

  Acquired right-of-use assets 

     -    (  65,448 ) 

 

B09900 

  Proceeds from Disposal of Usufruct 

Assets      5,782      - 

 

B07500 

  Interest Received 

     7,163      5,592 

 

B07600 

  Dividends received from related 

companies      1,060      1,097 

 BBBB   Net Cash Flow from Investing 

Activities      140,908    (  93,050 ) 

             

  Cash Flows from Financing Activities     

 

C00100 

  Increase in Short-Term Borrowings 

     481,278      171,479 

 

C00200 

  Decrease in short-term borrowings 

   (  372,485 )    (  264,405 ) 

 

C01600 

  Long-Term Borrowings 

     49,249      - 

 

C04020 

  Principal Repayment on Leases 

   (  6,564 )    (  6,819 ) 

 

C04500 

  Cash Dividend Distribution 

   (  83,433 )    (  75,921 ) 

 

C04600 

  Cash Capital Increase 

     -      365,577 

 

C04800 

  Employee Stock Option Plan 

     1,395      8,602 

 

C04900 

  Purchase of Treasury Stock 

   (  28,969 )      - 

 

C05600 

  Interest on payments 

   (  4,599 )    (  4,235 ) 

 

C05800 

  Payment of Cash Dividends to 

Shareholders for Non-Controlling 

Interests    (  10,400 )    (  8,400 ) 

 

 

C09900 

  Exercise of Right of Inclusion 

     256      - 

 CCCC   Net Cash Inflow from 

Financing Activities      25,728      185,878 

             

 

DDDD 

  Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 

and Cash Equivalents    (  18,255 )      11,110 

             

 EEEE   Net Increase in Cash and Cash 

Equivalents      226,838      121,612 
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E00100 

  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 

period      320,793      523,015 

             

 

E00200 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of 

Period     $ 547,631     $ 644,627 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The  accompanying  note s  form an in tegra l  part  o f  these  co nsol i date d f ina nc ia l  s ta teme nts .  
 (P lease  ref er  to  the  re vi ew repo rt  date d Novembe r  10 ,  2025 ,  i ssued by  Delo i t te  Touche Tohmatsu 

CPA Firm)  
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VSO ELECTRONICS CO.,  LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 September 30,  2025 and 2024  

 (AMO UNT S EXPRES SED IN THO US AN DS OF N EW TA IWAN D OLLAR S,  UNLE SS OTHERW ISE S PEC IF IE D)  

 

  1.  Overview 

   VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  (the "Company") was established on August 13, 

1994, and its  main business is the sale of various kinds of connecting wires 

for intell igent Internet of Things, cloud, industrial control,  medical and 

automotive applications.  

On September 28, 2022, the Company was approved by the Taipei Exchange 

for a public offering of stock and since October 1, 2024, the Company has 

been traded over the counter on the Taipei Exchange.  

The accompanying consolidated financial  statements are expressed in New 

Taiwan dollars, the functional currency of the Company. 

  2. Date and Procedure for Approval of Financial  Reports  

  These consolidated financial  statements were approved by the Board of 

Directors on November 10, 2025.  

  3. Application of Newly Issued and Revised Standards and Interpretations  

(1)  Initial  Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 

International Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations (IFRIC), and 

Statements of Interpretations (SIC) (hereinafter referred to as "IFRS 

Accounting Standards") Approved and Issued by the Financial  Supervisory 

Commission (FSC) 

Amendments to IAS 21 "Lack of Convertibility"  

  The application of the amendment to IAS 21 "Lack of Convertibility" will  

not result  in any significant changes to the consolidated  company's 

accounting policies and will not have a material impact on the consolidated 

company's consolidated financial  position or consolidated financial 

performance.  
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  (2)IFRS Accounting Standards Approved by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission for Application in 2016  

 Newly Issued/Amended/Revised Standards and 

Interpretations  

 Effective Date Issued by 

IASB 

 Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7: "Amendments 

to the Classification and Measurement of 

Financial Instruments" 

  January 1, 2026 

 Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7: Contracts 

Involving Reliance on Natural Power 

  January 1, 2026 

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards—Volume 

11 

  January 1, 2026 

 IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts" (including 

amendments from 2020 and 2021) 

  January 1, 2023 

 

  As of the date of approval and issuance of this consolidated financial  report ,  

the consolidated company continues to assess the impact of each amendment 

on its financial posit ion and performance. The relevant impact will be 

disclosed upon completion of the assessment.  

  (3) IFRS Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB but Not Yet Endorsed 

and Effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission  

 Newly Issued/Amended/Revised Standards and 

Interpretations  

 Effective Date Issued by 

IASB (Note 1) 

 Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: "Sale or 

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 

Associate or Joint Venture" 

  To be determined 

 IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in the 

Financial Statements 

  January 1, 2027 (Note 2) 

 IFRS 19 "Non-publicly accountable subsidiaries: 

Disclosures" (including 2025 amendments) 

  January 1, 2027 

 

 Note 1:  Unless otherwise specified, the above new, amended, or 

revised standards or interpretations are effective for annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after the respective dates.  

 Note 2:  The Financial Supervisory Commission announced on 

September 25, 2025, that  enterprises in Taiwan shall  apply 

IFRS 18 effective January 1, 2028. Enterprises may also elect  to 

apply IFRS 18 early upon its  endorsement by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission.  
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IFRS 18 Presentation of Financial Statements and Disclosures  

  IFRS 18 will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements .  

Key changes to the standard include:  

 •  The income statement shall classify items of income and expense 

into operating, investing, financing, income tax, and discontinued 

operations categories.  

 •  The income statement shall  present operating profit or loss,  profit  or 

loss before financing activities and income taxes, and subtotals and 

totals for profit or loss.  

 •  Guidance is provided to strengthen aggregation and disaggregation 

requirements:  A consolidated company must identify assets, 

liabilities,  equity,  income, expenses, and cash flows arising from 

individual transactions or other events, and classify and aggregate 

them based on common characteristics so that  each line item 

presented in the primary financial statements has at least  one similar 

characteristic. Items with dissimilar characteristics should be 

disaggregated in the primary financial statements and notes. A 

combining enti ty shall designate items as "other" only when a more 

informative designation cannot be identified.  

 •   Increased Disclosure of Management-Defined Performance 

Measures:  When communicating outside the financial  statements or 

conveying management 's perspective on a particular aspect of the 

combined entity's overall  financial  performance to users of the 

financial statements,  the combined entity shall disclose information 

about management-defined performance measures in a single note to 

the financial  statements.  This disclosure shall  include a description 

of the measure,calculation method, reconciliation to subtotals or 

totals specified in IFRS accounting standards,  and the income tax 

and non-controlling interest effects of related reconciliation items.  

  In addition to the above impacts, as of the date of approval and 

issuance of this consolidated financial report , the consolidated 

company continues to evaluate other effects of amendments to 

standards and interpretations on its financial posit ion and financial 
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performance. Such effects will  be disclosed upon completion of the 

evaluation.  

  4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

  (1) Compliance Statement  

This consolidated financial report has been prepared in accordance 

with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports 

by Securities Issuers and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting, as 

recognized and effective by the Financial  Supervisory Commission. 

This consolidated financial report does not include all  disclosures 

required by IFRS for a full annual financial report.  

  (2) Basis of Preparation  

Except for financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined 

benefit l iabilities recognized as the present value of defined benefit 

obligations less the fair value of plan assets,  these consolidated 

financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis.  

  Fair value measurements are categorized into Levels 1 to 3 based 

on the observabil ity and significance of relevant inputs:  

  1.   Level 1 inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 

liabilities in active markets that are readily observable at the 

measurement date.  

  2.   Level 2 inputs: Observable inputs for the asset or liabili ty other 

than quoted prices in active markets for identical  assets or 

liabilities included in Level 1.  

  3.   Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

  (3) Basis of Consolidation  

This consolidated financial report includes the financial reports of the 

Company and entities controlled by the Company (subsidiaries).  The 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income incorporates the 

operating income or loss of acquired or disposed subsidiaries for the 

period from the acquisition date  .The financial statements of 

subsidiaries have been adjusted to align their accounting policies with 

those of the parent company. In preparing the consolidated financial 

statements, all intercompany transactions,  account balances,  revenues, 

and expenses have been eliminated. The total  consolidated profit or 
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loss of subsidiaries is al located to the owners of the parent company 

and non-controlling interests, even if this results in a loss for 

non-controll ing interests.  

  For details of subsidiaries, ownership percentages, and business 

activities, refer to Note XI, Schedule VII, and Schedule VIII.  

  (4)  Other Significant Accounting Policies  

   Except as described below, please refer to the summary of 

significant accounting policies in the 2014 Consolidated Financial 

Statements.  

  1.   Defined Benefit Post-Retirement Benefits  

  Pension costs for the interim period are calculated using the 

pension cost  rate determined by actuarial valuation as of the prior 

year-end, based on the period from the beginning of the year to the 

end of the interim period. Adjustments are made for significant 

market fluctuations during the period, as well as for major plan 

amendments, settlements, or other significant one -time events.  

  2.   Income Tax Expense  

  Income tax expense comprises the sum of current income tax 

and deferred income tax. Interim income tax is assessed on an 

annual basis,  calculated by applying the tax rate expected to apply 

to the total annual surplus to the interim pre -tax profit.  

  3.   Financial Instruments  

  Financial assets and financial liabil ities are recognized on the 

consolidated balance sheet when the consolidated enti ty becomes 

a party to the contractual terms of the instrument.  

  (1)  Financial  Assets  

 Financial assets measured at  amortized cost  

  Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase 

agreements that  are highly liquid, readily convertible into a 

known amount of cash, and subject  to an insignificant risk of 

changes in value, and are held to meet short -term cash 

commitments.
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  (2)  Financial Liabilities  

 Financial liabilities at  fair value through profit or loss  

  Financial liabili ties at  fair value through profit or loss 

include those held for trading.  

  Financial liabili ties held for trading are measured at  fair 

value, with related gains or losses recognized in other 

comprehensive income.  

  5. Primary Sources of Uncertainty in Significant Accounting Judgments, 

Estimates,  and Assumptions  

   The primary sources of uncertainty in significant accounting 

judgments, est imates, and assumptions used in the preparation of this 

consolidated financial report are the same as those disclosed in the 2024 

consolidated financial report.  Please refer to the explanation of the 

primary sources of uncertainty in significant accounting judgments, 

estimates,  and assumptions in the 2024 consolidated financial report at .  

  6. Cash and Cash Equivalents  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Cash on Hand and Working 

Capital 

 

   $  770     $  685     $  996 

 Bank checking account      159,254      167,942      518,751 

 Cash Equivalents       

   Bank time deposits 

with original maturity 

within 3 months 

 

    105,888      152,166      124,880 

   Repurchase agreements      281,719      -      - 

   $ 547,631    $ 320,793    $ 644,627 

 

  7. Financial Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Financial Assets - Current       

 Mandatory fair value 

through profit or loss 

 Measured       

  Non-derivative financial 

assets       

    – Fund Beneficiary 

Certificates     $  5,114     $  5,056     $  5,037 
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 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Financial Liabilities - 

Current       

 Held for Trading       

  Derivatives (Unspecified 

Hedging)       

    －Forward Foreign 

Exchange Contracts     $  7,369     $  -     $  - 

 

   Losses on financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

through profit or loss for the periods from July 1 to September 30, 20 25 

and 2024, and from January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, amounted 

to (7,349) thousand, (371) thousand, (369) thousand, and (749) thousand, 

respectively.  

   The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding 

at the balance sheet date and had not yet matured:  

 September 30, 2025 

   Currency   Maturity Period  

 Contract Amount (NT$ 

thousand) 

 Sold Forward 

Foreign 

Exchange 

  USD/TWD   114.10.3-113.12.3   USD 5,130/NTD 148,585 

  As of December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024,  the consolidated 

company had no outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts. The 

primary purpose of the consolidated company's forward foreign exchange 

transactions is  to hedge against  risks arising from exchange rate 

fluctuations affecting foreign currency assets and liabilities. However,  as 

these transactions do not meet the cri teria for effective hedging, hedge 

accounting is not applicable.
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  8. Financial Assets Measured at  Amortized Cost  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Financial assets with original 

maturities exceeding three 

months 

 Time Deposits     $  428     $  -     $ 62,277 

 Bonds with call option      -      338,208      - 

     $  428     $ 338,208     $ 62,277 

       

 Total Book Value     $  428     $ 338,208     $ 62,277 

 Allowance for Losses      -     -      - 

 Amortized Cost     $  428     $ 338,208     $ 62,277 

 

   As of December 31, 2024, the coupon rate of the callable bonds 

purchased by the Company was 1.73%.  

   As of September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, the market 

interest rates for time deposits  with original  maturities exceeding three 

months were 4.10% per annum and 1.85% to 4.35% per annum, 

respectively.  

   The credit risk of financial  instruments such as bank deposits is 

measured and monitored by the finance department.  The consolidated 

company selects counterparties and performance parties that are all  banks 

with good credit standing.  

  9.Notes Receivable,  Accounts Receivable (including Related Parties),  and 

Other Receivables  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Notes Receivable       

 Operating Activities     $  2,912     $  8,052     $  4,724 

       

 Accounts Receivable       

 Total Book Value     $ 943,409     $ 764,984     $ 660,705 

 Less: Allowance for Losses    (  2,204 )    (  2,683 )    (  4,859 ) 

      941,205      762,301      655,846 

 Accounts Receivable - 

Related Parties      42,919      41,681      39,682 

     $ 984,124     $ 803,982    $ 695,528 

       

 Other receivables       

 Other     $  2,457     $  2,933     $  4,461 
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  (a) Notes Receivable  

  The consolidated company's average collection period for notes 

receivable ranges from 10 to 110 days. To mitigate credit risk, the 

consolidated company reviews the recoverable amount of each accounts 

receivable on the balance sheet date to ensure appropriate impairment 

losses are recognized for uncollectible accounts.  Accordingly, 

management believes the consolidated company's credit  risk has been 

significantly reduced.  

   The consolidated company recognizes an allowance for losses on 

notes receivable based on lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime 

expected credit losses are determined by considering the customer's  

past  default  history, current financial condition, and industry economic 

conditions.  As of September 30, 2025, December 31, 2024, and 

September 30, 2024, none of the notes receivable were past due, and 

the expected credit loss rate was 0% for all periods.  

  (2)  Accounts Receivable  

  The consolidated company's average credit period for merchandise 

sales ranges from 30 to 145 days.  Accounts receivable do not accrue 

interest.  

  To maintain the quality of receivables, the consolidated company 

has established procedures for managing operational credit risk. The 

risk assessment for individual customers considers multiple factors that  

may affect  their payment capacity,  including the customer's financial  

condition, aging analysis,  and historical transaction records. The 

company also employs certain credit  enhancement tools at  appropriate 

times, such as requiring advance payment from customers,  to mitigate 

credit risk for specific customers.  

  Furthermore, the consolidated company reviews the recoverable 

amount of each receivable at  the balance sheet date to ensure 

appropriate impairment losses are recognized for uncollectible 

receivables.  Accordingly, management believes the consolidated 

company's credit risk has been significantly mitigated.  

   The consolidated company recognizes allowance for credit losses 

on accounts receivable based on lifetime expected credit losses. 
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Lifetime expected credit  losses are calculated using a provision matrix 

that  considers customers' past default  records, current financial status,  

and industry economic conditions. Historical data indicates no 

significant differences in loss patterns across different customer 

segments,  so the provision matrix shows no significant differences in 

loss patterns across different customer segments.   

 shows no significant differences in loss patterns across different 

customer segments, the provision matrix does not  

 further segmented customer groups. Instead, expected credit  loss rates 

are determined solely based on the number of days past  due for 

accounts receivable.  

  If evidence indicates that  a counterparty is experiencing severe 

financial difficulties and the consolidated company cannot reasonably 

expect to recover the amount, such as when the counterparty is 

undergoing l iquidation,  the consolidated company directly writes off 

the related accounts receivable.  However,  collection activities will 

continue, and any amounts recovered through collection will  be 

recognized in profit  or loss.  

  The consolidated company measures the allowance for losses on 

accounts receivable (including related parties) based on the allowance 

matrix as follows:  

 September 30, 2025 

   Not Past Due  

 Past Due 

 1–30 days  

 Overdue 

 31–60 days  

 Overdue 

 61–90 days  

 Overdue 

 91–120 days  

 Overdue 

 Over 120 

days   Total 

 Expected Credit 

Loss Rate 

  0%–0.02%   0%–0.23%   0%–8.84%   0%–52.33%   0%–89.95%   100%   

 Total Book Value    $  845,068     $ 131,872     $  6,926     $  1,841     $  -     $  621     $ 986,328 

 Loss Allowance 

(Expected Credit 

Loss Over the Life 

of the Loan)    (  132 )    (  256 )    (  235 )    (  960 )      -     (  621 )    (  2,204 ) 

 Amortized Cost     $ 844,936     $ 131,616     $  6,691     $  881     $  -     $  -     $ 984,124 

 

 December 31, 2024 

   Not Past Due  

 Overdue 

 1–30 days  

 Overdue 

 31–60 days  

 Overdue 

 61–90 days  

 Overdue 

 91–120 days  

 Overdue 

 Over 120 

days   Total 

 Expected Credit 

Loss Rate 

  0%–0.66%   0%–7.29%  0%–51.69%   0%–89.95%   0%–100%   100%   

 Total Book Value     $ 714,900     $  86,672     $  3,576     $  167     $  -     $  1,350     $ 806,665 

 Loss Allowance 

(Expected Credit 

Loss Over the Life 

of the Loan)    (  274 )    (  114 )    (  796 )    (  149 )      -    (  1,350 )    (  2,683 ) 

 Amortized Cost     $ 714,626     $  86,558     $  2,780     $  18     $  -     $  -     $ 803,982 
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 September 30, 2024 

   Not Past Due  

 Overdue 

 1–30 days  

 Overdue 

 31–60 days  

 Overdue 

 61–90 days  

 Overdue 

 91–120 days  

 Overdue 

Over 120 days   Total 

 Expected Credit 

Loss Rate 

  0%–0.66%   0%–9.74%   0%–34.99%   0%–80.46%   0%–83.19%   100%   

 Total Book Value     $ 631,836     $  62,703     $  3,371     $  23     $  21     $  2,433     $ 700,387 

 Loss Allowance 

(Expected Credit 

Loss Over the Life 

of the Loan)    (  468 )    (  1,447 )    (  484 )    (  12 )    (  15 )    (  2,433 )    (  4,859 ) 

 Amortized Cost     $ 631,368     $  61,256     $  2,887     $  11     $  6     $  -    $  695,528 

 

  Information on changes in allowance for doubtful accounts is as 

follows:  

  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Opening Balance     $  2,683     $  3,691 

 Add: Impairment loss recognized for 

the period      -      1,013 

 Less: Reversal of impairment loss 

for the period    (  416)      - 

 Foreign currency translation 

differences    (  63)      155 

 Ending Balance     $  2,204     $  4,859 

 

  (3)  Other Receivables -  Other 

   The consolidated company assessed the expected recoverable 

amount of other receivables against their original carrying amounts. 

Considering the past default records,  current financial  status, and 

future economic outlook of the counterparties,  the expected 

recoverable amounts were determined to be equivalent to the original  

carrying amounts. Therefore, no allowance for impairment was 

recognized.  

  10.  Inventories  

   September 30, 2025   December 31, 2024   September 30, 2024 

 Raw Materials     $  92,238     $  56,693     $  52,005 

 In Finished Goods      57,744      56,811      50,787 

 Finished Goods      83,128      81,394      69,634 

 Merchandise      56,255      37,085      55,375 

     $  289,365    $  231,983     $  227,801 

 

   Cost of Goods Sold Breakdown:  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 

30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 

30  

 January 1, 

2025 

 to September 

30  

 January 1, 

2024 

 to September 

30 

 Cost of inventory sold     $ 518,256     $ 414,105     $ 1,398,108     $ 1,137,529 

 Inventory Valuation Loss 

(Reversal Gain)      4,230    (  1,337 )      11,985    (  21,448 ) 

     $ 522,486     $ 412,768     $ 1,410,093     $ 1,116,081 
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 11.Subsidiaries  

  The enti ties included in the preparation of  the consolidated 

financial statements are as follows:  

       Percentage of Shares Held 

 Investment Company 

Name   Subsidiary Name   Nature of Business  

 2015 
 September 

30  

 2014 
 December 

31 

  2024 
 September 

30 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

  Cable Garden 

Holdings Limited 

  Investment Holding 

Business 

  100   100   100 

   LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED 

  

  Sales of engineering plastics 

for optical automotive 3C 
products. 

  60   60   60 

   Vsorn Electronics 
(HANOI) Company 

Limited 

  Production and sales of 
various connecting cables 

for IOT, cloud, industrial 

control, medical and 
automotive applications. 

  100   100   100 

Cable Garden Holdings 

Limited 

 VSO (Viet Nam) 

Electronics Co., 
LTD. 

  

  Production and sales of 

various connecting cables 
for IOT, cloud, industrial 

control, medical and 

automotive applications. 

  100   100   100 

  Ji An VSO Electronics 

Co., LTD. 

  Production and sales of 

various connecting cables 

for IOT, cloud, industrial 
control, medical and 

automotive applications. 

  100   100   100 

   Cleveland 
Investments 

Limited 

  Investment holding business   100   100   100 

 Cleveland Investments 
Limited 

  VSO Electronics 
(Suzhou) Co., LTD. 

  Production and sales of 
various connecting cables 

for IOT, cloud, industrial 

control, medical and 
automotive application 

  100   100   100 

 LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED 

  Linkupon 

International 
Holdings, Limited 

  Investment Holding 

Business 

  100   100   100 

 Linkupon International 

Holdings, Limited 

  Zhangjiagang Free 

Trade Zone 
Linkupon Material 

Trading Limited 

Company 

  Sales of engineering plastics 

for optical automotive 3C 
products. 

  100   100   100 

 For the periods from January 1 to September 30, 20 25 and 2024, the 

financial statements of the  non-significant subsidiariesVSO (Viet Nam) 

Electronics Co., LTD. Co., Ltd.  and Vsovn Electronics (HANOI) 

Company Limited have not been reviewed by an accountant .  

Information on Subsidiaries with Significant Non -Controll ing Interests  

    

 Percentage of Equity and Voting Rights Held 

by Non-Controlling Interests 

 Subsidiary Name  

 Principal Place of 

Business  
 2025 

 September 30  

 2024 

 December 31  

 2024 

 September 30 

 LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED. 

  Taiwan   40%   40%   40% 
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For information on the principal place of business and country of 

incorporation, please refer to Appendix VII.  

   Profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests   Non-controlling interests 

 Subsidiary Name  

 July 1 to 
September 

30, 2025 

  July 1 to 
September 

30, 2024 

  January 1 to 
September 

30, 2025  

 January 1 to 
September 

30, 2024  

 2025 
 September 

30  

 2024 

 December 31  

 2024 
 September 

30 

 LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONA

L LIMITED.    $  4,210      $  3,044      $  10,613     $  8,671     $ 90,304     $  92,828     $  90,377 

 

LINKUPON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Current Assets     $ 321,281     $  311,614     $ 310,332 

 Non-current assets      50,942      54,145      54,609 

 Current Liabilities    (  126,917)    (  114,723)    (  119,667) 

 Non-current liabilities    (  19,547)    (  18,966)    (  19,331) 

 Equity     $ 225,759     $ 232,070     $ 225,943 

       

 Equity attributable to:       

  Company owners     $ 135,455     $ $139,242     $ 135,566 

  Non-controlling interests     90,304       92,828      90,377  

     $ 225,759     $ 232,070     $ 225,943 

 

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  
 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Operating Revenue     $ 139,913     $ 136,023     $ 363,067     $ 418,508 

         

 Net Profit for the Period     $  10,524     $  7,610     $  26,532     $  21,677 

 Other comprehensive 

income      6,411      2,620    (  6,843)      6,174 

 Total comprehensive 

income     $  16,935     $  10,230     $  19,689     $  27,851 

         

 Net profit attributable to:         

  The owners of the 

Company     $  6,314     $  $4,566     $  15,919     $  13,006 

  Non-controlling 

interests      4,210     3,044      10,613      8,671 

     $  10,524     $  7,610     $  26,532     $  21,677 

 Comprehensive income 

attributable to:         

  The Company's owners     $  10,161     $  6,138     $  11,813     $  16,710 

  Non-controlling 

interests      6,774      4,092      7,876      11,141 

     $  16,935     $  10,230     $  19,689     $  27,851 

 

 12.Equity Method Investments  Investments in Associates  

  
 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Significant Affiliated Enterprises       

  Zhang Jia Gang Free Trade 

Zone Mitsui LinkUpon 

Advanced Material, Inc.     $ 46,514     $ 48,495     $ 48,556 
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Material  Related Party Information  

      

 Percentage of Ownership and Voting 

Rights 

 Company Name  

 Nature of 

Business  

 Principal 

Place of 

Business  

  September 

30,2025  

  

 December 

31, 2024  

 September 

30, 2024 

Zhang Jia Gang Free Trade 

Zone Mitsui LinkUpon 

Advanced Material, Inc. 

 Production and 

Sales of 

Plastic 

Materials 

  China     24%      24%      24% 

 

  For information regarding the nature of business, principal place of 

business, and country of incorporation of the above -mentioned related 

companies, please refer to Appendix VIII "Mainland Investment 

Information."  

   The share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

recognized by investments accounted for using the equity method and 

consolidated companies for the periods from January 1 to September 30, 

2025 and 2024, respectively,  is based on unaudited financial  statements.  

13.Property, Plant, and Equipment  

   Land   Buildings  
 Machinery 
Equipment  

 
Transportation 

Equipment  
 Other 

Equipment  

 

Construction 
in Progress 

 

 Total 

 Cost               

 Balance as of January 
1, 2025     $ 65,705     $ 171,386     $ 334,183     $  6,356     $ 65,405     $  2,712     $ 645,747 

 Add      31,872      14,552      104,306      2,438      11,660      70,859      235,687 

 Government grants 
(Note 28)      -    (  154)      -      -      -      -    (  154) 

 Disciplinary Action      -      -    (  1,718)   (  -  )    (  221)         (  1,939) 

 Net exchange 
difference      -    (  6,792)    ( 22,107)    (  247)    (  3,082)    (  2,981)    ( 35,209) 

 Balance as of 

September 30, 2025     $ 97,577     $ 178,992     $414,664     $  8,547     $ 73,762     $ 70,590     $ 844,132 
               

 Accumulated 

Depreciation               
 Balance as of January 

1, 2025     $  -    ($ 26,278)  

  

($170,650)    ($ 1,955)    ($29,855)     $  -  

  

( $228,738) 

Depreciation expense      -    (  4,067)    ( 29,697)    (  1,140)    (  6,997)      -    ( 41,901) 
 Penalty      -      -      1,018      -      221      -      1,239 

 Net exchange 

difference      -      858       10,232       63       1,318       -      12,471  
 Balance as of 

September 30, 2025     $  -    ($29,487)  

  

( $189,097 )    ( $3,032 )    ( $35,313 )     $  -  

  

($256,929) 

               
 December 31, 2024, 

and 

 January 1, 2025    $  65,705     $145,108     $ 163,533     $  4,401     $ 35,550     $  2,712     $417,009 
               

 September 30, 2025 

Net Amount     $ 97,577     $ 149,505     $ 225,567     $  5,515     $ 38,449     $ 70,590     $ 587,203 
               

 Cost               

 Balance as of January 
1, 2024     $ 65,705     $ 165,468     $ 274,144     $  4,231     $ 54,548     $  2,539     $ 566,635 

 Add      -      1,891      45,758      4,083      2,132      15,325      69,189 

 Government grants      -    ( 15,001 )      -     -      -      -    ( 15,001) 
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   Land   Buildings  

 Machinery 

Equipment  

 
Transportation 

Equipment  

 Other 

Equipment  

 

Construction 

in Progress 

 

 Total 

(Note 28) 
 Disposition      -      -    (  5,867 )    (  2,066 )    (  126 )      -    (  8,059) 

 Reclassified      -      -      -      -      2,760    (  2,760 )      - 

 Net exchange 
difference      -      5,349      10,852      127      1,787      50      18,165 

 Balance as of 

September 30, 2024     $ 65,705     $ 157,707     $ 324,887     $  6,375     $ 61,101     $ 15,154    $ 630,929 

               
 Accumulated 

Depreciation               
 Balance as of January 

1, 2024     $  -    ($20,732 )  

  

( $151,900)    ($ 2,089 )    ($22,967)     $  -  

  

($197,688) 
 Depreciation expense      -    (  3,713 )    (  21,135 )    (  1,056)    (  4,607 )      -    ( 30,511) 

 Penalty      -      -      5,773      1,584     126      -      7,483 

 Net exchange 
difference      -    (  654)    (  6,257 )    (  51 )   (   764 )      -    (  7,726 ) 

 Balance as of 

September 30, 2024     $  -    ($25,099)  

  

($173,519)    ($ 1,612 )    ($28,212 )     $  -    ($228,442 ) 
               

 September 30, 2024 

Net Amount     $ 65,705    $ 132,608    $ 151,368     $  4,763     $ 32,889     $ 15,154     $ 402,487 

 

 Depreciation expense is calculated on a straight -l ine basis over the 

following useful lives:  

Buildings  30 to 50 years 

Machinery Equipment  2 to 10 years 

Transportation Equipment  2 to 6 years 

Other Equipment  2 to 10 years 

  

For real  estate, plant, and equipment pledged as collateral  for 

borrowings by the consolidated company, please refer to Note 32.  

14.Lease Agreements 

  (1) Right-of-Use Assets  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

Carrying amount of 

right-of-use assets       

Land     $ 86,000    $ 104,687     $ 105,933 

Transportation Equipment      1,317      2,150      1,585 

Buildings      16,501      13,640      15,755 

     $ 103,818     $ 120,477     $ 123,273 

 

  
 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

Additions to Right-of-Use 

Assets     $  8,302     $ 96,427     $  9,636     $ 98,041 

         

Depreciation expense on 

right-of-use assets         

Land     $  443     $  51     $  1,432     $  148 

Transportation Equipment      240      484      742      1,434 

Buildings      2,066      1,962      6,113      5,807 

     $  2,749    $  2,497     $  8,287     $  7,389 
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  Land use rights are recognized on a straight -line basis over the 

lease terms, which range from 2020 to 2072 and from 2024 to 2073, 

respectively.  

In addition to the aforementioned addit ions and depreciation of 

right-of-use assets, the consolidated company’s right -of-use assets 

decreased by NT$7,274 thousand due to the disposal of land use rights 

located in the High-Tech Industrial  Zone of Anfu County, Jiangxi 

Province, China, by i ts subsidiary, Ji  An VSO Electronics Co., LTD. 

(hereinafter referred to as “Ji  An VSO”) in February 2025.  

No significant subleasing or impairment of right -of-use assets occurred 

during the periods from January 1 to September 30 in both 2025 and 

2024.  

(2) Lease Liabilities  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

Carrying Amount of Lease 

Liabilities       

 Current     $  9,195     $  7,545     $  8,629 

 Non-current     $  9,506     $  8,868     $  9,647 

 

  The discount rate range for lease liabilities is  as follows:  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

Buildings   3.00%–4.65%   3.35%–4.65%   3.45%–4.65% 

Transportation Equipment   1.35%–4.65%   1.35%–4.65%   1.35%–4.65% 

 

  (III)   Significant Lease Activities and Terms  

   The merged company leases vehicles, warehouses, offices, and 

factory buildings for a term of 2 to 5 years. Upon termination of the 

lease term, the merged company has no preferential  purchase rights for 

the leased vehicles,  warehouses,  offices, and factory buildings.  

  (IV)  Other Lease Information  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 

30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 

30  

 January 1, 

2025 

 to September 

30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

Short-term lease expenses and 

low-value asset lease expenses     $  5,124     $  2,551     $ 15,706     $  7,431 

Total Cash (Outflow) for Leases    ($  7,450 )    ( $ 5,068 )    ($ 22,661 )    ($ 14,881 ) 
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The combined company elects to apply the exemption from recognizing 

related right-of-use assets and lease liabil ities for leases of buildings qualifying 

as short-term leases and office equipment leases qualifying as low -value asset  

leases.  

All lease commitments commencing after the balance sheet date are as 

follows: 

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Lease Commitments     $  -     $  -     $  3,088 

 

 For information on the pledge of right -of-use assets, refer to Note 32 . 

15.Intangible Assets  

  

 Computer 

Software 

 

 Patent Rights   Total 

Cost       

Balance as of January 1, 

2025     $ 20,773     $ 21,866     $ 42,639 

Add      1,072      2,213      3,285 

Net exchange difference    (  619 )    (  12 )   (   631 ) 

Balance as of September 30, 

2025     $ 21,226     $ 24,067     $ 45,293 

       

Cumulative amortization 

and impairment       

Balance as of January 1, 

2025    ( $  8,659 )    ( $ 10,678 )    ( $ 19,337 ) 

 Amortization expense    (  3,991 )    (  4,226 )    (  8,217 ) 

 Net exchange differences      266       10       276  

 Balance as of September 

30, 2025    ( $ 12,384 )    ( $ 14,894 )    ( $ 27,278 ) 

       

 December 31, 2024 and 

 January 1, 2025     $ 12,114     $ 11,188     $ 23,302 

       

 Net Amount as of 

September 30, 2025     $  8,842     $  9,173    $  18,015 

       

Cost       

Balance as of January 1, 

2024     $ 18,105     $ 12,704     $ 30,809 

 Add      2,222      9,152      11,374 

 Disposals    (  436 )      -    (  436 ) 

 Net exchange difference      421      12      433 

 Balance as of September 

30, 2024     $ 20,312     $ 21,868     $ 42,180 
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Cumulative amortization 

and impairment       

 Balance as of January 1, 

2024    ( $  4,339)    ( $  6,365 )    ( $ 10,704) 

 Amortization expense    (  3,642 )    (  2,945)    (   6,587) 

 Disposition      436      -      436 

 Net Exchange 

Differences    (  144 )   (   7)    (  151) 

 Balance as of 

September 30, 2024    ( $ 7,689)    ( $ 9,317)    ( $ 17,006) 

       

 September 30, 2024 Net 

Amount     $ 12,623     $ 12,551     $ 25,174 

 

  Amortization expense is recognized on a straight -l ine basis over the 

following useful lives:  

 Computer software   3 to 7 years 

 Patent rights   4 to 5 years 

 

Amortization expenses aggregated by function:  

  
 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

Cost of Sales     $  1,805     $  1,665     $  5,172     $  3,804 

Operating Expenses         

 Selling Expenses      84      88      258      262 

 Administrative Expenses      288      270      847      748 

Research and Development 

Expenses 

 

    565      618     1,940      1,773 

     $  2,742     $  2,641     $  8,217     $  6,587 

 

 16.Other Assets  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Current       

 Prepaid Goods     $  2,684     $ 10,646     $  1,703 

 Prepaid expenses      14,276      7,907      5,915 

 Tax credit balance      6,696      8,215      7,320 

 Other      455      37      35 

     $ 24,111     $ 26,805     $ 14,973 

       

 Non-current       

 Prepaid Equipment     $ 16,112     $ 19,900     $ 33,623 

 Prepaid real estate 

acquisition costs      -      14,285      - 

 Deposits for Guarantees 

(Note 32)      6,630      6,904     5,953 

 Other Prepayments      693      993      626 

     $ 23,435     $ 42,082     $ 40,202 
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 17.Loans 

  (1) Short-Term Borrowings  

   September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024 

  September 30, 

2024 

 Bank Credit Loans     $ 101,028     $  -     $ 31,650 

 Bank-guaranteed loans      42,302      34,750      58,339 

     $ 143,330     $ 34,750     $ 89,989 

 

   The interest rates for bank credit loans as of September 30, 20 25 

and September 30, 2024 were 4.926%–5.22% and 5.95%, respectively.  

   The bank-guaranteed loan as of September 30, 2025, was secured 

by Chairman Chien Chung-cheng acting as a joint  guarantor in his 

personal capacity and by the consolidated company's own land use 

rights and buildings as collateral (see Note 32), with an interest rate of 

2.50%. 

   As of December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, 

bank-guaranteed loans were secured by Chairman Chien Chung -cheng 

acting as a joint guarantor in his personal capacity. The interest rates 

were 0.50% and 0.50% to 6.14%, respectively.  

   In May 2024, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a 

bank for NT$35,000 thousand under the "Ministry of Economic Affairs 

Low-Carbon Smart  Management Project  Loan." The Ministry of 

Economic Affairs subsidized the Company for one year at the floating 

interest rate of the Chunghwa Post two -year fixed-term savings deposit.  

As of December 31 and September 30, 2024, the Company's actual  

interest rate borne was 0.50% per annum.The loan period runs from 

May 13, 2024, to May 13, 2025, with monthly interest  payments and 

principal repayment at maturity.  

  (2) Long-Term Borrowings  

   September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024 

 September 30, 

2024 

 Guaranteed Loan       

 Bank Loan     $ 59,249     $ 10,000     $  - 

 Less: Government 

subsidy discount 

 

  (  740 )    (  147) 

 

    - 

     $ 58,509     $  9,853     $  - 
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  The Company entered into loan agreements with banks in March 

2025 and December 2024 under the "National Development Fund 

Overseas Investment Financing Project  Loan Program" for NT$49,249 

thousand and NT$10,000 thousand, respectively.  with loan periods 

from March 6, 2025 to December 10, 2029 and December 10, 20 24 to 

December 10, 2029, respectively. Principal and interest are to be repaid 

monthly following a 24-month grace period. Chairman Chien 

Chung-cheng personally served as joint  guarantor for these loans.  

  The interest  rates as of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 

2024, were 1.773784% and 1.772019%, respectively.  

 18.Accounts Payable  

   September 30, 2025   December 31, 2024   September 30, 2025 

 Accounts Payable       

 Operating Activities     $ 420,673     $ 371,451     $ 330,814 

 

 The average credit  period for the consolidated company's purchases of 

goods is 30 to 120 days.  

 19.Other Liabilit ies  

  
 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

Current       

Other Payables       

 Wages and Bonuses Payable     $ 65,059     $ 68,928     $ 54,959 

 Insurance premiums payable      127,483     130,191      131,088 
 Employee compensation 

payable      7,863      8,486      4,140 
 Accrued director 

compensation      2,881      3,748      1,932 

 Business tax payable      -      3,083      - 

 Equipment Payables      14,213      4,013      6,994 

 Other      100,166      67,684      77,909 

     $ 317,665     $ 286,133     $ 277,022 

Other Liabilities       
 Deferred Government Grants 

(Note 28)     $  253     $  292     $  399 
 Refund liabilities (Notes 23 

and 31)      2,894      3,041      1,702 

 Other      1,483      1,441      1,669 

     $  4,630     $  4,774    $  3,770 

 

Non-current       

 Other Liabilities       
 Government Grant Deferred 

Income (Notes 17 and 28)     $  487     $  105     $  - 
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 20.Provision for Liabili ties  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Current       

 Warranty     $  2,687     $  2,107     $  1,820 

 

  The warranty liabili ty provision is based on the terms of the sales 

contracts.  It  represents the present value of management 's best estimate of 

future economic benefits  expected to flow out due to warranty obligations. 

This estimate is based on historical  warranty experience and adjusted for 

factors such as new raw materials,  process changes,  or other factors 

affecting product quality.  

 21.Post-Retirement Benefit Plans  

 In 2023, the Company reached an agreement with employees covered 

by the defined benefit retirement plan to settle their service years. The 

Labor Pension Reserve Account was closed upon approval by the 

competent authority in January 2024.  

 22. Equity 

  (1)Capital  Stock 

Common Stock 

   September 30, 2025   December 31, 2024   September 30, 2024 

 Authorized Shares 

(Thousands)      60,000      60,000      60,000 

 Authorized Capital     $ 600,000     $ 600,000     $ 600,000 

 Number of Shares Issued 

and Fully Paid (in 

thousands)      43,848      41,716      41,620 

 Issued share capital     $ 438,488     $ 417,165     $ 416,203 

 

   Each issued common share has a par value of $10 and carries one 

voting right and one dividend entit lement.  

  The Company's board of directors resolved on July 23, 2024, to 

conduct a cash capital increase prior to its initial  listing, issuing 

3,660,000 new shares with a par value of NT$10 per share.  This 

issuance was declared effective by the Taiwan Stock Exchange 

Corporation on August 9,  2024, as per its letter No. 1130007053.The 

aforementioned cash capital increase included an employee 

subscription and public offering at  a premium price of NT$100.73 per 
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share.  The total  issuance amount,  after deducting underwriting fees and 

related expenses, amounted to NT$365,577 thousand and was fully paid 

up. The capital  increase base date was September 27, 20 24, and the 

registration amendment was completed on October 14, 20 24. 

  The Company completed the registration amendment on April  23, 

2024, for the exercise of 430 thousand shares of employee stock 

options granted on February 1, 2022, at a subscription price of NT$20 

per share, during the period from January 1 to September 30, 20 24. 

  The Company completed the registration of changes on July 17, 

2025, for the capital increase based on the exercise of 46,000 shares of 

employee stock options granted on June 1,  2022, at a subscription price 

of NT$30 per share, with the capital increase base date set  as July 7, 

2025.  

  For details regarding the issuance of employee stock options,  

please refer to Note 27.  

  (2) Capital  Surplus  

 

  September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Available for loss 

coverage, cash 

dividends, or 

capitalization 

 or capitalization 

 

     

 Share premium (Note)     $ 565,260     $ 563,750     $ 561,431 

 Available to offset losses       

 Other - Exercise of 

attribution rights 

 

    1,184      928      - 

 Not available for any 

purpose 

 

     

 Employee Stock Options      1,917      836      1,383 

     $ 568,361     $ 565,514    $ 562,814 

 

 Note: This category of capital reserve may be used to offset  losses.  

When the company has no losses, it  may be used for cash 

distributions or capitalization, provided that  the annual 

capitalization amount shall not exceed a specified percentage of 

the paid-in capital .  
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  Reconcil iat ion of balances of various capital  reserves for the 

periods from January 1 to September 30, 20 25 and 2024: 

  

 Share 

Premium  

 Employee 

Stock Options   Other   Total 

 Balance as of January 1, 

2024     $  223,467     $  4,377     $  -     $  227,844 

 Cash Capital Increase      328,977      -      -      328,977 

 Recognition of 

Share-Based Payments      -      1,733       -      1,733  

 Changes in ownership 

interests in subsidiaries      -    (  41)      -    (  41 ) 

 Employees exercised stock 

options      8,987    (  4,686 )      -      4,301 

 Balance as of September 

30, 2024     $  561,431     $  1,383     $  -     $  562,814 

         

 Balance as of January 1, 

2025    $  563,750     $  836     $  928     $  565,514 

 Recognition of 

Share-Based Payments      -      1,661      -      1,661 

 Exercise of vesting rights      -      -      256      256 

 Employees exercising 

stock options      1,510     (    580)      -      930  

 Balance as of September 

30, 2025     $  565,260     $  1,917     $  1,184     $  568,361 

 

  (3) Retained Earnings and Dividend Policy  

  Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Incorporation regarding 

profit  distribution policy, when distributing profits , the Company shall  

first estimate and reserve taxes payable, then legally offset  losses. 

Subsequently, 10% shall  be allocated to the legal reserve fund, except 

when the legal reserve fund has reached the paid -in capital .  The 

remaining amount shall be used to establish or reverse special surplus 

reserves in accordance with laws, regulations,  and competent authority 

requirements.  If any surplus remains after the aforementioned 

deductions, the Board of Directors shall propose a surplus distribution 

plan for such surplus together with the undistributed surplus from the 

beginning of the period, and submit it  to the shareholders'  meeting for 

resolution.  

  If all or part  of the Company's dividends and bonuses are 

distributed in cash, the Board of Directors shall be authorized to 

resolve and report to the shareholders ' meeting.  

  Furthermore, in accordance with the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation, surplus distribution may be made in the form of cash 
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dividends or stock dividends. The surplus distribution shall  not be less 

than 35% of the distributable surplus, and the cash dividend shall not 

be less than 20% of the total dividend amount for that distribution. The 

aforementioned ratios for surplus distribution and shareholder cash 

dividends may be adjusted by resolution of the shareholders'  meeting 

based on actual  profits and capital  conditions.  

  The Company's policy for distributing employee and director 

compensation, as stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation, is  detailed 

in Note 24(7) Employee and Director Compensation.  

  The legal reserve shall be appropriated until i ts balance equals the 

Company's total  paid-in capital.  The legal reserve may be used to offset  

losses.  When the Company has no losses,  the portion of the legal 

reserve exceeding 25% of the total  paid -in capital may be appropriated 

as capital  or distributed in cash.  

  When the Company establishes a special surplus reserve against 

accumulated other comprehensive income deductions from prior 

periods, if  prior period undistributed earnings are insufficient to cover 

the reserve, the reserve shall be established using the current   

period's net profit after tax plus items other than net profit  after tax 

included in current period undistributed earnings.  

   The Company’s profit distribution plans for the years 2024 and 

2023 are as follows: 

   2024   2023 
Legal reserve    $  18,545    $  11,495 
Special surplus reserve    ($ 18,029 )    $  11,815 
Cash dividends to shareholders    $  83,433    $  75,921 
Stock dividends to shareholders    $  20,858    $  - 
Cash dividends per share (NT$)    $  2.0    $  2.0 
Stock dividends per share (NT$)      0.5      - 

 

  The above cash dividends to shareholders were resolved by the 

Board of Directors on March 13, 20 25 and March 28, 2024, respectively.  

The remaining surplus distribution items were also resolved at the 

Annual General Meetings held on May 12, 20 25 and May 15, 2024, 

respectively.  
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   The above stock dividends were approved by the shareholders'  

meeting on May 12, 2025, authorizing the issuance of 2,086 thousand 

new shares through capitalization of retained earnings, each with a par 

value of NT$10. The record date for the capital  increase was set  as July 

7, 2025, and the registration of changes was completed on July 17, 

2025. 

  (4) Special Surplus Reserve  

  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Opening Balance     $ 52,481     $ 40,666 

 Allocation (Reversal) to 

Special Reserve 

 

  (  18,029 )      11,815 

 Balance at End of Period     $ 34,452     $ 52,481 

 

  (5) Foreign Exchange Differences on Translation of Financial Statements 

of Foreign Operating Units  

  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Opening Balance    ( $ 34,451 )    ( $ 52,481 ) 

 Exchange differences arising 

from the translation of 

financial statements of 

foreign operations   (   49,755 )      21,970 

 Share of other comprehensive 

income of associates 

accounted for using the 

equity method    (  1,302 )      1,252 

 Balance at end of period    ( $ 85,508 )    ( $ 29,259 ) 

 

  (6) Non-controlling interests  

  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Opening Balance     $ 92,828      $ 87,594  

 Cash dividends paid by 

subsidiaries to non-controlling 

interests 

 non-controlling interests    (  10,400 )    (  8,400 ) 

 Net profit for the period      10,613      8,671 

 Other Comprehensive Income 

for the Year     
  Foreign Exchange 

Differences on 

Translation of Financial 

Statements of Foreign 

Operations    (  1,869 )      1,635 
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   Share of Other 

Comprehensive Income 

of Associates 

Accounted for Using 

the Equity Method    (  868 )      835 
  Changes in ownership 

interest in subsidiaries 

 Changes      -      42 

 Balance at End of Period     $ 90,304     $ 90,377 

 

  (7) Treasury stock 

 

 

  

 Shares Transferred to 

Employees (Thousands) 

 Number of Shares as of 

January 1, 2025 

 

     - 

 This issue adds        268 

 September 30, 2025 Number 

of Shares 

 

      268 

 

  The Company's Board of Directors resolved on April 16, 20 25 to 

repurchase shares from the centralized market for transfer to employees.  

The repurchase period was from April  17, 20 25 to June 13, 2025. The 

Company repurchased a total of 268 thousand treasury shares at a cost 

of NT$28,969 thousand.As of September 30, 20 25, the market value of 

the treasury shares was NT$36,314 thousand.  

   Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares held 

by the Company may not be pledged and are not entitled to dividend 

distributions or voting rights.  

 23.  Income 

  
 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

Customer Contract Revenue         

  Sales Revenue     $ 711,453     $ 572,249     $ 1,936,317     $ 1,509,357 

  Compensation Income      15,521      86      17,163      1,962 

     $ 726,974     $ 572,335     $ 1,953,480     $ 1,511,319 
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(1)   Description of Customer Contracts  

 In accordance with commercial practice, the consolidated company 

derives revenue from sales of various smart IoT, cloud, industrial 

control, medical,  and automotive connectivity cables.  For certain 

customers, based on their transaction history over the past year, the 

consolidated company estimates discount amounts using the most 

probable value and recognizes refund liabilities accordingly (recorded 

under other current l iabil ities).  Please refer to Notes XIX and 

XXXI. 

(2)   Contract Balance 

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024  

 January 1, 

2024 

 Notes Receivable (Note 9)     $  2,912     $  8,052     $  4,724     $  2,038 

 Accounts Receivable 

(Note 9)     $ 941,205     $ 762,301     $ 655,846     $ 513,176 

 Accounts Receivable - 

Related Parties 

 (Note 31)     $  42,919     $  $     $ $39,682     $  35,271 

 Contract liabilities - 

current     $  1,156     $  1,042     $  112     $  370 

 

(3)   Breakdown of Customer Contract  Revenue  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 AIOT Smart IoT Application 

Cable Assembly     $ 337,148     $ 225,388     $ 846,436     $ 556,980 

 Computer and Consumer 

Electronics Cable Assemblies      175,976     144,423      519,571      360,134 

 Engineering Plastic Functional 

Materials      139,913      136,023      359,211      418,508 

 Other - Cable Assemblies      73,937      66,501      228,262      175,697 

     $ 726,974     $ 572,335     $ 1,953,480     $ 1,511,319 

 

 24. Net Profit for the Period  

  (1) Interest Income 

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Interest Income         

  Bank Deposits     $  566     $  1,338     $  2,730     $  5,790 

  Putable Bonds      1,316      -      3,863      - 

  Interest on deposits      -      -      -      4 

     $  1,882    $  1,338     $  6,593     $  5,794 
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(2) Other Income 

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Government Subsidy 

Revenue     $  63     $  203     $  401     $  1,210 

 Other      3,302      464      6,007      2,177 

     $  3,365     $  667     $  6,408     $  3,387 

(3) Other gains and losses  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of 

Property, Plant, and 

Equipment    ($  5 )     $  3     $  340     $  473 

 Loss on disposal of 

right-of-use assets     22      -    (  1,380)      - 

 Net gain (loss) on financial 

assets and liabilities at 

fair value through profit 

or loss (Note 7)    (  7,349)    (  371)    (  369)    (  749) 

 Net foreign exchange gains 

(losses)      10,941     (  5,684)    (  20,867)      9,600 

 Other    (  36)      -     (  472)    (  42) 

     $  3,573     ( $  6,052)    ( $ 22,748)     $  9,282 

 

 (4) Financial Expenses  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Interest on Bank Loans     $  2,429    $  1,314     $  4,976     $  3,572 

 Interest on lease liabilities      82      197      391      631 

     $  2,511     $  1,511     $  5,367     $  4,203 

 

 (5) Depreciation and Amortization  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Depreciation Expense 

by Function         

  Operating Costs     $  12,750     $  8,064     $  33,032     $  23,594 

  Operating Expenses      5,689      4,948      17,156      14,306 

     $  18,439     $  13,012     $  50,188     $  37,900 

         

 Amortization Expense 

by Function         

  Operating Costs     $  1,805     $  1,665     $  5,172     $  3,804 

  Operating Expenses     937      976      3,045      2,783 

     $  2,742     $  2,641     $  8,217     $  6,587 

 

  For information on the allocation of intangible asset amortization 

expense to individual line items, please refer to Note XV.  
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  (6) Employee benefit  expenses  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30, 

2025  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 

30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Short-term Employee 

Benefits     $ 142,989     $ 117,209     $ 403,243     $ 306,746 

 Share-based payments         

  Equity-settled      907      1,432      1,661      1,733 

 Post-Retirement Benefits         

  Defined Contribution 

Plan      2,543      1,208      3,965      3,381 

 Total Employee Benefits 

Expense     $ 146,439     $ 119,849     $ 408,869     $ 311,860 

         

 By Function         

  Operating Costs     $  66,993     $  58,302    $  201,528     $ 151,905 

  Operating Expenses      79,446      61,547      207,341      159,955 

     $ 146,439     $ 119,849     $ 408,869     $ 311,860 

 

  (7) Employee and Director Compensation  

 The Company allocates 2% to 10% of i ts pre -tax profit (before 

deducting employee and director remuneration) for employee 

remuneration and up to 2% for director remuneration, provided that the 

profit  exceeds the amount required to cover accumulated 

losses.Pursuant to the August 2024 amendment to the Securities and 

Exchange Act,  the Company resolved at  i ts 20 25 shareholders'  meeting 

to amend its articles of incorporation, stipulating that no less than 15% 

of the aforementioned employee remuneration allocation shall  be 

distributed as grassroots employee remuneration.  

   Estimated employee and director remuneration for 20 25 and 

January 1 to September 30, 2024 is as follows:  

Estimated Proportion  

  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Employee compensation   4.00%   3.00% 

 Director Compensation   1.50%   1.41% 

 

Amount 

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 

30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Employee 

compensation     $  3,551     $  1,615     $  7,657     $  4,113 

 Director Compensation     $  1,416     $  807     $  2,881     $  1,932 
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   If amounts change after the date of issuance of the annual 

consolidated financial statements, adjustments shall  be made based on 

changes in accounting estimates and recorded in the subsequent fiscal 

year.  

  The employee bonuses and director remuneration for fiscal years 

2024 and 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors on March 13, 

2025, and March 28, 2024, respectively, as follows:  

Amount 

   2024   2023 

 Employee Bonuses (Cash)     $  8,449     $  4,994 

 Director Compensation (Cash)     $  3,748     $  1,947 

 

   The actual amounts distributed for employee compensation and 

director compensation in fiscal years 2024 and 2023 differ from the 

amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements for those 

respective years.  

   For information regarding the employee and director 

compensation approved by the Company's Board of Directors,  please 

refer to the Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Market Observation Post 

System." 

 25. Income Tax 

  (1) Income Tax Recognized in Profit or Loss  

The main components of income tax expense are as follows:  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Current Income Tax         

  Current Period    ( $  9,394 )    ( $  8,093 )    ( $  40,924 )    ( $  18,824 ) 

  Additional tax on 

undistributed earnings      -      -    (  4,053 )    (  800 ) 

   Adjustments for 

Prior Years      19      718      5,195    (   432 ) 

    (  9,375 )    (  7,375 )    (  39,782 )    (  20,056 ) 

 Deferred income tax         

  Current Period    (  8,658 )    (  4,681 )    (  493 )    (  17,229 ) 

 Income tax recognized in 

profit or loss 

 Expense    ( $  18,033 )    ( $  12,056 )    ( $  40,275 )    ( $  37,285 ) 
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  (2) Income Tax Assessment Status  

The Company's corporate income tax returns for periods up to and 

including fiscal year 2023 have been assessed by the tax authorities.  

   The corporate income tax returns of the subsidiary, LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED. , for the years up to and including 2022 

have been assessed by the tax authorit ies.  

 26. Earnings Per Share  

 Uni t :  NT$ per  share  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Basic Earnings Per Share         

  Total Basic Earnings 

Per Share     $  1.57    $  1.07     $  3.41     $  2.67 

         

 Diluted earnings per share         

  Total diluted earnings 

per share     $  1.56     $  1.06     $  3.40     $  2.65 

 

  The impact  of the bonus share issuance has been retrospectively 

adjusted in calculating earnings per share.  The record date for the bonus 

share issuance is July 7,  2025. Due to the retrospective adjustment, the 

changes in basic and diluted earnings per share for the periods from July 

1 to September 30, 2024, and January 1 to September 30, 2024, are as 

follows:  

   Before Retroactive Adjustment   After Retroactive Adjustment 

  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30  
 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Basic Earnings Per Share     $  1.12     $  2.81     $  1.07     $  2.67 

 Diluted earnings per share     $  1.12     $  2.79     $  1.06     $  2.65 

 

  The net profit and weighted average number of common shares used 

to calculate earnings per share are as follows:  

 Net profit for the period  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Net profit used to calculate 

basic/diluted earnings per 

share    $  68,307     $  42,759     $ 149,064     $ 106,363 
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Number of Shares  

 Uni t :  Thousand  Shares  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Weighted average number of 

common shares outstanding 

for basic earnings per share      43,581      40,025      43,691      39,797 

 Effect of dilutive potential 

common shares:         

  Employee stock options      41      32      61      81 

  Employee compensation      57      126      73      192 

 Weighted average number of 

common shares outstanding 

for diluted earnings per share      43,679      40,183      43,825      40,070 

 

   If  the consolidated company has the option to distribute employee 

compensation in either stock or cash, diluted earnings per share is  

calculated assuming that  employee compensation will  be distributed in 

stock. The weighted average number of shares outstanding is adjusted to 

include these potential common shares when they have a dilutive effect , 

thereby calculating diluted earnings per share.  When calculating diluted 

earnings per share prior to the distribution of employee compensation 

shares in the following fiscal year, the dilutive effect of these potential  

common shares continues to be considered.  

 27.  Share-Based Payment Agreements  

  (1) Employee Stock Option Plan for Cash Capital Increase  

  The Company resolved at  its board meeting on July 23, 2024, to 

conduct a cash capital increase prior to its initial  listing , reserving 

shares for employee subscription. The number of shares reserved for 

employee subscription was 189,000 shares, with compensation costs 

recognized from January 1 to September 30, 2024, amounting to 

NT$1,395,000.  

   The employee stock options granted by the Company were valued 

using the Black-Scholes pricing model.  The input values used in the 

valuation model are as follows:  

 Grant Date Stock Price   NT$106.77 per share 

 Exercise Price   NT$100.73 per share 

 Expected Volatility   44.98% 

 Term   9 days 

 Risk-Free Rate   1.3138% 
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  (2) Employee Stock Option Plan  

1. On April  14, 2022, the Company's Board of Directors approved the 

2022 First Employee Stock Option Certificate Issuance and 

Subscription Plan. On June 1,  2022, 200 units of employee stock 

options were granted to employees, with each unit enti tling the 

holder to subscribe for 1,000 shares of the Company's common 

stock. subject to board approval for phased issuance and delivery 

through new share issuance. Eligible recipients include eligible 

business and non-business employees meeting specific criteria.  

The vesting period is four years. Business unit  employees may 

exercise one-third of their granted units after one year of vesting 

and meeting their department's financial performance targets.  

Upon the expiration of two years from the grant date and 

fulfillment of the financial performance targets for their 

respective departments, certificate holders may exercise one -third 

of the granted stock option certificates; upon the expiration of 

three years from the grant date and fulfil lment of the Company's 

financial performance targets,  certificate holders may exercise 

one-third of the granted stock option cert ificates;  For 

non-business unit employees,  after one year from the grant date, 

the holder may exercise 40% of the granted stock option 

certificates; after two years from the grant date and upon the 

Company meeting the financial performance targets, the holder 

may exercise 30% of the granted stock option cert ificates;  Upon 

the expiration of three years from the grant date and provided the 

Company satisfies the financial performance criteria,  the holder 

may exercise 30% of the granted units.  The exercise price is set at  

NT$30 per share.  Should the Company's common stock undergo a 

capital reduction to offset losses after the warrant issuance, the 

exercise price shall be adjusted according to the prescribed 

formula.  

  2.  Pursuant to the Board of Directors' resolution dated December 27, 

2023, and the amendment approved on May 15, 2024, the 

Company established the 2023 First Employee Stock Option 
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Certificate Issuance and Subscription Plan. The total  number of 

stock options to be granted to employees is 300 units, with each 

unit entitling the holder to subscribe for 1,000 shares of the 

Company's common stock.  which may be issued in installments 

upon board approval and delivered through the issuance of new 

shares.  The recipients are employees of the Company who meet 

specific criteria.  On October 8, 2024, 130 units of employee stock 

options were granted. The vesting period for these options is four 

years.  After two years from the grant date, certificate holders may 

exercise 50% of the granted units.  Upon the expiration of three 

years from the grant date,  the holder may exercise 50% of the 

granted units.  The exercise price for the stock options granted on 

October 8,  2024, is  NT$105 per share. Should the Company's 

common stock undergo a capital reduction to offset  losses after 

the issuance of these stock options, the exercise price shall  be 

adjusted according to the prescribed formula.  

 3.   The Company adopted the First Employee Stock Option 

Certificate Issuance and Subscription Plan for 20 25 through a 

board resolution on March 13, 2025, and amended it via a board 

resolution on August 11, 2025. The plan authorizes the grant of a 

total  of 300 units of employee stock options, with each unit  

entit ling the holder to subscribe for 1,000 shares of the Company's 

common stock.  which may be issued in installments upon board 

approval and delivered through the issuance of new shares. The 

recipients are employees of the Company and its controlling or 

subordinate companies who meet specific eligibili ty criteria.  On 

August 20, 2025, 185 units of employee stock options were 

granted. The vesting period for these options is four years.  After 

two years from the grant date,  certificate holders may exercise 

50% of the granted units.  Upon the expiration of three years from 

the grant date,  the holder may exercise 50% of the granted units. 

The exercise price for the stock options granted on August 20, 

2025, is  NT$75 per share. Should changes occur in the Company's 

common stock following the issuance of the stock options, the 



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE) 

 
 

-46 - 

exercise price shall be adjusted in accordance with the relevant 

provisions of the stock option plan.  

    Relevant information regarding employee stock options is  as 

follows:  

  

 January 1 to September 30, 

2025  

 January 1 to September 30, 

2024 

 Employee Stock 

Options  

 Quantity 

 (Units)  

 Weighted 

Average 

 Exercise 

Price 

 (NTD/share)  

 Quantity 

 (Units)  

 Weighted 

Average 

 Exercise 

Price 

 (CNY/share) 

 Outstanding at 

Beginning of 

Period 

 

    176     $  87.06 

 

    631     $  21.83 

 Current period 

grant 

 

    185       75 

 

    -       - 

 Expired this 

period 

 

    -       - 

 

  (  60 )      20 

 Current Issue    (  46 )      30    (  430 )      20 

 Outstanding at 

End of Period 

 

    315      87.38 

 

    141      28.19 

 Ending executable      -      -     58      20 

 

   As of the balance sheet date, information regarding outstanding 

employee stock warrants is as follows:  

 130 units granted on October 8, 2024   185 units granted on August 20, 2025 

 Exercise Price 

 Range (NT$)  

 Weighted average 

remaining 

contractual life 

(years)  

 Exercise Price 

 Range (NT$)  

 Weighted Average 

Remaining 

Contract Term 

(Years) 

 $105   3.08   $75   3.89 

 

  The Black-Scholes valuation model is used for employee stock 

options granted by the Company. The input values used in the valuation 

model are as follows:  

  

February 1, 2021 

2,055 units granted  

October 1, 2021 

250 units granted  

June 1, 2022 

Granted 200 units  

October 8, 2024 

Granted 130 units 

 August 20, 2025 

Granted 185 units 

 Grant Date 
Market Price 

 
NT$23.58 per share   25.69 yuan per share   34.24 yuan/share   105.00 yuan/share 

 
 109.50 yuan per share 

 Exercise Price   20 yuan per share   20 yuan per share   30 yuan per share   105 yuan per share   75 yuan per share 

 Expected 
Volatility 

 
 35.04%-36.69%   38.90%-41.42%   41.79%-46.94%   35.80%-37.79% 

 
 35.41%-42.04% 

 Duration   4 years   3.33 years   4 years  4 years   4 years 

 Expected 
Dividend 

Yield 

 

 0%   0%   0%   0% 

 

 0% 

 Risk-free rate   0.16%-0.23%   0.25%-0.27%   0.90%-1.02%   1.369%-1.3897%   1.2004%-1.2199% 
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  The compensation costs recognized  by the combined company for 

the periods from July 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, and from 

January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, were recorded as salary 

expenses of NT$907 thousand, NT$37 thousand, NT$1,661 thousand, 

and NT$338 thousand, respectively.  

 28. Government Subsidies  

  The subsidiary,  Ji’an VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.,  received the 

following subsidies from the People's Government of Anfu County, Ji 'an 

City, Jiangxi Province, China (Jiangxi Provincial  Government) in 

February 2025 and January 2024 .The nature of these government grants 

is tax rebate subsidies provided by the local government based on 

investment agreements, recorded as a reduction of property,  plant, and 

equipment.  

  In June 2024,  the subsidiary Ji 'an VSO Electronics Co.,  Ltd.  received 

a preferential policy subsidy of RMB 2,296 thousand (NT$10,203 

thousand) from Anfu County, Ji 'an City, Jiangxi Province, China. This 

government subsidy constitutes various tax rebate subsidies granted by 

the local government pursuant to the investment agreement and is 

recorded as a reduction in property, plant, and equipment.  

 The various tax rebate subsidies granted are recorded as a reduction in 

property, plant, and equipment.  

  Government subsidies received by the consolidated company during 

the periods from July 1 to September 30, 20 25 and 2024, and from 

January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, reduced depreciation expense 

by NT$421 thousand, NT$451 thousand,NT$1,305 thousand, and 

NT$1,180 thousand, respectively.  

  In May 2024, the consolidated company obtained a preferential -rate 

government loan of NT$35,000 thousand under the "Ministry of Economic 

Affairs Low-Carbon Smart Management Project Loan." The Ministry 

subsidized the floating interest rate on a two -year fixed-term deposit with 

Chunghwa Post for one year. Estimated at  the market rate of 2.22% at the 

time of borrowing, the loan's fair value was NT$34,404 thousand.  The 

difference of NT$596 thousand between the amount received and the fair 
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value of the loan is recognized as a government low -interest loan subsidy 

and recorded as deferred income.  

  In March 2025, the merged company entered into a loan agreement 

with a bank for NT$49,249 thousand under the "National Development 

Fund Overseas Investment Financing Program." The fair value of the loan 

was estimated at  NT$48,505 thousand based on the prevailing market 

interest rate of 2.196% at the time of borrowing.  The difference of 

NT$744 thousand between the amount received and the fair value of the 

loan is treated as a low-interest loan subsidy from the government and 

recognized as deferred income.  

  The consolidated company recognized other income - government 

subsidy income of NT$63 thousand, NT$148 thousand, and NT$401 

thousand for the periods from July  1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, and 

from January 1 to September 30, 20 25 and 2024, respectively.401 

thousand, and 197 thousand, respectively,  and recognized interest 

expenses on the loan of 333 thousand, 193 thousand, 1,375 thousand, and 

265 thousand, respectively.  

 29.  Cash Flow Information and Capital Risk Management  

  (1) Changes in Liabili ties from Financing Activities  

 January 1 to September 30, 2025 

       Non-cash Changes   

  

 January 1, 

2025   Cash Flow   New leases  

 Government 

grants  

 Exchange 

Rate Changes  

 September 30, 

2025 

 Short-term 

borrowings     $  34,750     $  108,793      $  -     $  250     ( $  463 )     $  143,330 

 Long-term 
borrowings      9,853      49,249       -    (  593 )      -      58,509 

 Lease liabilities      16,413    (  6,564 )      9,636      -    (  784 )      18,701 

    $  61,016     $  151,478      $  9,636    ( $  343 )    ( $  1,247 )     $  220,540 

 

 January 1 to September 30, 2024  

       Non-cash Changes   

  

 January 1, 

2024   Cash Flow   New leases  

 Government 

Grants  

 Exchange 

Rate Changes  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Short-term 
borrowings     $  183,314    ( $  92,926 )     $  -    ( $  399 )     $  -     $  89,989 

 Lease 

liabilities      22,544    (  6,818 )      1,626      -      924      18,276 
     $  205,858    ( $  99,744 )     $  1,626    (  399 )     $  924     $  108,265 
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(2) Capital Risk Management  

 The merged company manages its capital to ensure that, on a going 

concern basis,  shareholder returns are maximized by optimizing the 

balance between debt and equity.  

 The capital  structure of the Merged Company consists of equity (i.e.,  

share capital,  capital  reserves, retained earnings,  and other equity 

items).  

 The Company is not subject to other external capital requirements.  

 30.  Financial Instruments  

  (1)Fair Value Information - Financial Instruments Not Measured at  Fair 

Value 

 Management of the consolidated company believes that the carrying 

amounts of financial assets and financial l iabil ities not measured at fair 

value approximate their fair values.  

  (2) Fair Value Information—Financial  Instruments Measured at  Fair Value 

on a Recurring Basis  

  1.   Fair Value Hierarchy 

 September 30, 2025 

   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total 

 Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 

Loss - Current         

 Fund Beneficiary 

Certificates     $ 5,114     $      $      $ 5,114 

         

 Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current         

 Derivatives     $  -     $ 7,369     $  -     $ 7,369 

 

 December 31, 2024 

   Tier 1   Level 2   Tier 3   Total 

 Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 

Loss - Current         

 Fund Beneficiary 

Certificates     $ 5,056     $  -     $  -     $ 5,056 
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 September 30, 2024 

   Grade 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total 

 Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 

Loss - Current         

 Fund Beneficiary 

Certificates     $ 5,037     $  -     $  -    $  5,037 

 

   There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair 

value measurements during the periods from July 1 to September 

30, 2025 and 2024, or from January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 

2024. 

  2.   Valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 fair value 

measurements  

 Financial Instrument 

Category   Valuation Techniques and Inputs 

 Derivatives - Forward 

Foreign Exchange 

Contracts 

  Discounted Cash Flow Method: Future cash 

flows are estimated based on the observable 

forward exchange rates at the end of the 

period and the exchange rates specified in the 

contracts, and discounted using discount rates 

that reflect the credit risk of each 

counterparty. 

 

  (3) Types of Financial Instruments  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Financial Assets       

 Measured at Fair Value 

Through Profit or Loss       

  Mandatorily measured at 

fair value through 

profit or loss (Note 1)     $  5,114     $  5,056     $  5,037 

 Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost (Note 2) 

 Financial assets (Note 2) 

 

    1,544,204      1,480,872      1,417,587 

       

 Financial liabilities       

 Measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 

 

     

  Held for trading (Note 3)      7,369      -      - 

 Measured at amortized cost 

(Note 4)      876,557      636,491      643,920 
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 Note 1:  The balance includes fund beneficiary certificates.  

 Note 2:  The balance includes cash and cash equivalents, financial 

assets measured at amortized cost,  accounts receivable, notes 

receivable,  accounts receivable - related parties,  other 

receivables, other receivables - related parties, and deposits 

paid, all of which are financial assets measured at  amortized 

cost .  

 Note 3:  The balance includes forward foreign exchange contracts.  

 Note 4:  The balance includes short -term borrowings,  accounts payable,  

accounts payable to related parties,  other payables, other 

payables to related parties, and long -term borrowings, all 

measured at amortized cost.  

(4)   Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies  

 The purpose of the  merged company's financial  risk management is 

to manage financial risks associated with market risks (including 

exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and other price risks), credit risk,  

and liquidity risk related to its operational activities.  To mitigate such 

financial risks, the merged company is committed to identifying , 

assessing, and implementing strategies to hedge against market 

uncertainties, thereby reducing the adverse impact of market 

fluctuations on the company's financial position and performance . 

   Significant financial activities of the merged company are 

implemented following resolutions by the Board of Directors.  During 

the execution of financial plans,  the company adheres to the 

stipulations of its  policies.  

  1.   Market Risk 

  The primary financial risks incurred by the consolidated 

company through its operational activities include foreign 

exchange rate fluctuation risk (see (1) below), interest  rate 

fluctuation risk (see (2) below), and other price risks (see (3) 

below).  

  The consolidated company's exposure to market risk related 

to financial instruments and the methods for managing and 

measuring such exposure remain unchanged.  
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  (1)  Exchange Rate Risk 

   Several  subsidiaries of the consolidated company 

engage in sales and purchase transactions denominated in 

foreign currencies, thereby exposing the consolidated 

company to exchange rate fluctuation risk. Approximately 

66% of the consolidated company's sales are denominated in 

currencies other than the functional currency of the 

transaction group entity, and approximately 32% of its cost 

amounts are denominated in currencies other than the 

functional currency of the transaction group entity.  

  For the carrying amounts of monetary assets and 

monetary liabilit ies denominated in non -functional 

currencies at  the balance sheet date, please refer to Note 34.  

 Sensitivity Analysis  

   The consolidated company is primarily affected by 

fluctuations in the US dollar exchange rate.  

  The table below details the sensit ivity analysis of the 

consolidated company when the exchange rate of the New 

Taiwan Dollar (functional currency) against each relevant 

foreign currency increases or decreases by 1%. The 1% 

sensitivity ratio is used internally by the consolidated 

company to report foreign exchange risk to key management 

and represents management 's assessment of the reasonably 

possible range of foreign exchange rate fluctuations.The 

sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies, adjusting their year -end 

translation values by a 1% exchange rate change. Positive 

figures in the table below indicate the increase in pre -tax net  

profit  resulting from a 1% depreciation of the New Taiwan 

Dollar relative to each relevant currency. A 1% appreciation 

of the New Taiwan Dollar relative to each relevant foreign 

currency would have an equal negative impact on pre -tax net  

profit .
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  Impact of the US Dollar 

Benefits  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

         $  5,700   (i)     $  3,662   (i) 

 

 (i)   Primarily derived from the merged company's US 

dollar-denominated bank deposits, accounts receivable,  

bank borrowings,  and accounts payable outstanding as of 

the balance sheet date that  were not subject to cash flow 

hedging.  

 (i i)   The consolidated company's sensitivity to exchange 

rates increased during the current year, primarily due to 

the rise in net foreign currency assets denominated in US 

dollars.  

  (2)  Interest  Rate Risk  

   The consolidated company manages interest  rate risk 

by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating 

interest rates.  

   The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities 

subject to interest rate exposure at the balance sheet date are 

as follows:  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Fair value through 

profit or loss interest rate 

risk       

  – Financial Assets     $ 388,035     $ 490,374    $ 187,157 

  －Financial 

liabilities      77,210      26,266      18,276 

       

 Cash Flow Interest Rate 

Risk       

  －Financial Assets      159,255      167,942      518,751 

  －Financial 

liabilities      143,330      34,750      89,989 

 

Sensitivity Analysis  

  The following sensitivity analysis is  determined based 

on the interest rate exposure of non-derivative financial  
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instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating -rate 

liabilities,  the analysis assumes that the outstanding l iability 

amounts at  the balance sheet date remain outstanding 

throughout the reporting period. The percentage change used 

by the consolidated company when reporting interest rates to 

key management is a 1% increase or decrease in interest  rates,  

which also represents management's  assessment of the 

reasonably possible range of interest rate changes.  

  If interest rates increase/decrease by 1%, with all  other 

variables held constant, the consolidated company's pre -tax 

net  profit for the periods from January 1 to September 30, 

2025 and 2024 would increase/decrease by NT$119 thousand 

and NT$3,216 thousand, respectively.  This is primarily due 

to a decrease in the consolidated company's variable -rate 

deposits.  

  (3)  Other Price Risks  

  The consolidated company is exposed to commodity 

price risk  arising from its investment in fund beneficiary 

certificates. However, the consolidated company regularly 

assesses price risk and investment performance in accordance 

with its  procedures for acquiring and disposing of assets, and 

therefore does not expect any significant price risk to occur.  

 Sensitivity Analysis  

  The following sensitivity analysis is  based on the fund 

price exposure as of the balance sheet date.  

  If fund prices increase/decrease by 1%, the consolidated 

company's pre-tax net profit for January 1 to September 30, 

2025 and 2024 would increase/decrease by NT$51 thousand 

and NT$50 thousand, respectively,  due to changes in the fair 

value of financial  assets measured at  fair value through profit  

or loss.  

  2.   Credit Risk 

  Credit  risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the 

consolidated company arising from a counterparty's failure to 



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE) 

 
 

-55 - 

fulfill  its  contractual  obligations.  As of the balance sheet date, the 

consolidated company's maximum credit  risk exposure to potential 

financial loss due to counterparty default primarily stems from:  

  (1)  The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the 

consolidated balance sheet.  

  (2)  The maximum amount the consolidated company may be 

required to pay under financial  guarantees it  has provided, 

regardless of the likelihood of occurrence.  

  The combined company's policy is to transact only with 

counterparties of excellent credit standing and, where necessary, 

obtain adequate collateral to mitigate the risk of financial  loss 

arising from defaults. The combined company continuously 

monitors credit  exposures and counterparties ' credit ratings, 

controlling credit risk through counterparty credit  limits reviewed 

and approved annually by corporate management.  

  To mitigate credit risk,  the Company's management is 

responsible for determining credit  limits, approving credit, and 

implementing other monitoring procedures to ensure that 

appropriate actions are taken to recover overdue receivables.  

Furthermore, the combined company individually reviews the 

recoverable amount of receivables at the balance sheet date to 

ensure that appropriate impairment losses are recognized for 

uncollectible receivables.  Accordingly, the combined company's 

management believes that the Company's credit risk has been 

significantly reduced.  

  The consolidated company's credit  risk is  primarily 

concentrated in specific customers. As of September 30, 2025, 

December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, the proportion of 

accounts receivable attributable to these customers was 26%, 33%, 

and 31%, respectively.  

  3.   Liquidity Risk  

  The consolidated company manages and maintains sufficient 

cash and cash equivalents to support group operations and 

mitigate the impact of cash flow fluctuations.  Management 
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monitors the utilization of bank credit facilities and ensures 

compliance with loan agreement terms.  

   Bank borrowings represent a significant source of liquidity 

for the consolidated company. As of  September 30, 2025, 

December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, the consolidated 

company's undrawn credit facili ties are described in (3) Credit 

Facilities below.  

  (1)  Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk in Non-Derivative 

Financial Liabili ties  

  The remaining contractual  maturity analysis for 

non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the 

earliest  possible date the consolidated company may be 

required to repay, using the undiscounted cash flows 

(including principal and estimated interest) of the financial 

liabilities.  Therefore, bank borrowings for which the 

consolidated company may be required to repay immediately 

are classified in the earliest  period in the table below, 

without considering the probabil ity of the bank exercising 

this right immediately. The maturity analysis for other 

non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the 

agreed repayment dates.  

   The table below details  the remaining contractual 

maturity analysis of the consolidated company's 

non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment 

periods.  This analysis is based on the earl iest  possible date 

the consolidated company could be required to repay the 

liability and is prepared using the undiscounted cash flows of  

the financial  liability (including principal and estimated 

interest).  
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September 30, 2025 

 Non-derivative 

financial liabilities  

 Less than 1 

year   1 to 5 years   5 to 10 years   10–15 years 

 

Non-interest-bearin

g liabilities     $ 674,718     $  -     $  -     $  - 

 Floating Rate 

Instruments      143,330      -      -      - 

 Fixed-rate 

instruments      370      59,250      -      - 

 Lease liabilities      9,533      9,645      -      - 

     $ 827,951     $ 68,895    $  -     $  - 

 

 December 31, 2024 

 Non-derivative 

financial liabilities  

 Less than 1 

year   1 to 5 years   5 to 10 years   10–15 years 

 

Non-interest-bearin

g liabilities     $ 591,888     $  -     $  -     $  - 

 Floating Rate 

Instruments      35,086      -      -      - 

 Fixed-rate 

instruments      188      10,441      - 

 

    - 

 Lease liabilities      8,442      9,231      -      - 

     $ 635,604     $ 19,672     $  -     $  - 

 

 September 30, 2024 

 Non-derivative 

financial liabilities  

 Less than 1 

year   1 to 5 years   5 to 10 years   10–15 years 

 

Non-interest-bearin

g liabilities     $ 553,819     $  -     $  -     $  - 

 Floating Rate 

Instruments     90,474      -      -      - 

 Lease liabilities      9,716      10,213      -      - 

     $ 653,178     $ 10,213     $  -     $  - 

 

  (2)  Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk Schedule for Derivative 

Financial Liabili ties  

  For liquidity analysis of derivative financial instruments,  

net  settlement derivatives are based on undiscounted net 

contractual cash inflows and outflows. Gross settlement 

derivatives are based on undiscounted gross cash inflows and 

outflows.  When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed,  

the disclosed amount is determined based on the estimated 

interest rate derived from the yield curve as of the balance 

sheet date.  

 September 30, 2025 
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 On demand 

or less than 1 

month  

 1 to 3 

months  

 3 months to 

1 year   1 to 5 years   Total 
 Net settlement           

 Forward Foreign 

Exchange 

 

   $  7,341     $  28     $  -     $  -     $  7,369 

 

  (3)  Credit Line 

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Unsecured Bank Loan 

Facility       

  - Amount Utilized     $ 101,028     $  -     $ 31,650 

  －Unused Amount      208,972      120,000      - 

     $ 360,000     $ 120,000    $  31,650 

       

 Secured Bank Loan 

Facility       

  －Amount Utilized     $ 101,552     $ 45,000     $ 58,738 

  －Unused Amount      531,831      419,038      161,262 

     $ 633,383     $ 464,038     $ 220,000 

 

 31. Related Party Transactions  

  Transactions, account balances,  income, and expenses between the 

Company and i ts subsidiaries (which are related parties of the Company) 

are fully eliminated upon consolidation and therefore not disclosed in this 

note. Transactions between the consolidated companies and other related 

parties,  except those disclosed in other notes,  are as follows.  

  (1) Name of Related Party and Relationship  

Name of Related Party  
 Relationship with the Consolidated 

Company 

Advantech Co., Ltd.  Ultimate Parent of the Significant Investor 

Advantech Technology (China) Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary of the Significant Investor 

LNC Dong Guan Co., Ltd.  Affiliates of Significantly Affected 

Investors (Note 1) 
Beijing Yan Hua Xing Ye Electronic 

Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (ACN) 

 Affiliates of Significantly Affected 

Investors 
Advantech Corporation (U.S.A.)  Affiliates of Significantly Affected 

Investors 
Advantech Europe B.V.  Affiliates of Significantly Affected 

Investors 

LINK UPON ADVANCED MATERIAL CORP.   Significantly influenced investor of a 

subsidiary (LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.) 

Zhang Jia Gang Free Trade Zone Mitsui LinkUpon 

Advanced Material, inc. 

  Affiliated Subsidiaries 

I-SHENG Electric Wire & Cable Company 

(Vietnam) 

  Related party in substance (Note 2) 
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Note 1:  The parent company of the Group's significant influence 

investor lost control over LNC Technology Co., Ltd.  and i ts 

subsidiaries during the second quarter of fiscal year 2024, and 

therefore is not a related party of the Group since the second 

quarter of fiscal year 2024.  

Note 2: I-SHENG Electric Wire & Cable Company (Vietnam) is wholly 

owned by the Company's corporate director,  I -SHENG 

Industrial Co., Ltd.  However,  following the full re -election of 

directors at the Company's shareholders'  meeting on May 12, 

2025, I-SHENG Industrial Co.,  Ltd. no longer holds any 

director positions in the Company. Therefore, effective from 

that  date, I-SHENG Electric Wire & Cable Company (Vietnam) 

is no longer a substantive related party of the Company.  

  (2) Revenue 

 Related Party 

Category/Name  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Parent Company of 

Significant Influence on 

Investors         
  Advantech Co., Ltd.    $  14,090     $  8,910     $  42,304     $  26,944 

 Subsidiaries with 

Significant Influence on 

Investors         
  Advantech (China) 

Co., Ltd.      21,191      6,463      65,597      55,529 

 Associated Companies 

with Significant Influence 

on Investors      205      2,290      329      4,688 

 Investors with Significant 

Influence over 

Subsidiaries         
  Yuntuo Materials 

Technology Co., 

Ltd.      -       -       -      27,968 

     $  35,486     $  17,663     $ 108,230     $ 115,129 

 

  From July 1 to September 30, 2025, and January 1 to September 30, 

2025, refund discounts recognized for the parent company of investors 

with significant influence and subsidiaries of investors with significant 

influence amounted to NT$516 thousand and NT$1,307 thousand, 

respectively, and were recorded as deductions from sales revenue.  

  The transaction prices and credit terms for sales to related parties 

are not significantly different from those for non -related parties.  If the 
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specifications are unique and there are no comparable transactions of 

the same type, the sales price is  determined based on mutual agreement 

between both parties.  

  (3) Purchases  

 Related Party 

Category/Name  
 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Significant Influence 

Investor of Subsidiary         
  Yuntuo Materials 

Technology Co., Ltd.     $  1,699     $  -     $  2,447     $  - 

 

  Transaction prices and credit terms for purchases from related 

parties did not differ significantly from those for non -related parties.  

   (4) Receivables from Related Parties (excluding loans to related parties)  

 Accounting Item  

 Related Party 

Category/Name  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Accounts 

Receivable- 

Related Parties 

  Parent Company of 

Investor with Significant 

Influence 

      

      Advantech Co., Ltd.     $  15,046     $  13,330     $  9,161 

   Subsidiaries with 

Significant Impact on 

Investors 

      

    Advantech (China) 

 Co., Ltd. 

     27,664      28,259      27,941 

   Significant Influence 

Related Party 

 Enterprise 

     209      9      2,580 

   Significant Influence 

Investors of 

Subsidiaries 

      

    LINK UPON 

ADVANCED 

MATERIAL CORP. 

     -      83      - 

       $  42,919     $  41,681     $  39,682 

         

 Other 

Receivables-Re

lated Parties 

  Parent Company of 

Significant 

Influence Investor 

      

      Advantech Co., Ltd.     $  18     $  -     $  17 

   Significant Influence 

Investor of 

Subsidiary 

      

    LINK UPON 

ADVANCED 

MATERIAL CORP 

     4      -      - 

       $  22     $  -     $  17 

 

  The consolidated company collects payments for related -party 

transactions on a monthly basis with terms ranging from 30 to 120 

days.  
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  Outstanding receivables from related parties lack collateral 

guarantees.  As of September 30, 20 25, December 31, 2024, and 

September 30, 2024, no allowance for doubtful accounts was recorded 

for receivables from related parties.  

  (5)  Payables to related parties (excluding borrowings from related 

parties)  

 Accounting 

Item   Related Party Category  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Accounts 

Payable - 

  Significant Influence 

Investor of Subsidiary 

    $  1,367     $  2,531     $  - 

  Related 

Parties 

        

         

 Other 

Payables 

  Subsidiaries with 

Significant 

Influence on 

Investors 

    $  72     $  24     $  286 

  －Related 

Parties 

        

         

 Other 

Current 

Liabilities 

- Refund 

Liabilities 

  Parent Company of 

Significant 

Influence Investor 

    $  529     $  -     $  - 

 

  (6)  Lease Agreement  

 Type of Relationship  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Lease Expenses         

 Related Entities of 

Subsidiaries 

 

   $  5     $  4     $  14     $  13 

 Substantive Related 

Party 

 

    -      2,001      9,490      5,979 

     $  5     $  2,005     $  9,504    $  5,992 

 

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Other Payables - Related 

Parties       

 Lease Payables       

  Substantive Related 

Parties     $  -     $  677     $  656 

 

   The consolidated company leases office space from an affi liated 

enterprise of its subsidiary for a one -year term. From January 1 to 

September 30, 2025 and 2024, it  recognized rental expenses under 

selling expenses.  These expenses were determined by reference to 
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rental rates for comparable assets and paid as fixed annual lease 

payments under the lease agreement.  

   The consolidated company leases factory premises from a related 

party for a one-year term. Rent is  determined by reference to rental 

rates for comparable assets and paid monthly as fixed lease payments 

under the lease agreement.  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Rental Expenses by 

Function         

  Operating Costs     $  -     $  1,400     $  5,333     $  4,186 

  Operating Expenses      5      605      4,171      1,806 

     $  5     $  2,005     $  9,504     $  5,992 

 

   Lease payments represent short -term lease obligations. The 

aggregate future lease payments for short -term leases are as follows:  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Total Future Lease 

Payments 

 

   $  5 

 

   $ 19,587 

 

   $  2,006 

 

  (7)  Key Management Personnel Compensation  

  

 July 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

July 1, 2024 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2025 

 to September 30  

 January 1, 2024 

 to September 30 

 Short-Term Employee 

Benefits     $  10,891     $  14,871     $  32,878     $  36,704 
 Share-based payments      130      41      469      305 

 Post-retirement benefits      340       402       1,067      1,204 

     $  11,361     $  15,314     $  34,414     $  38,213 

 

   Compensation for directors and other key management personnel 

is determined by the Compensation Committee based on individual 

performance and market trends.   

32. Assets pledged as collateral  

  The following assets have been pledged  as collateral  for the 

consolidated company's long-term and short -term bank loans, as well as 

deposits for leased vehicles,  warehouses, offices, and factory buildings:  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Financial Assets at 

Amortized Cost - Current     $  428     $  -     $  - 

 Land      25,532      25,532     $ 25,532 

 Buildings and Structures      102,529      110,087      112,147 
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Land Use Rights      1,790      9,358      9,506 

 Deposited Guarantees      6,630      6,904      5,953 

     $ 136,909     $ 151,881     $ 153,138 

 

 33. Unrecognized Contractual  Commitments  

 Except as disclosed in other notes, the unrecognized contractual 

commitments of the consolidated company as of the balance sheet date are 

as follows:  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Acquisition of property, 

plant, and equipment     $ 295,982     $ 68,360     $ 31,245 

 Acquisition of intangible 

assets      150      4,942      3,042 

     $ 296,132     $ 73,302     $ 34,287 

 

 34. Information on Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilit ies with Significant 

Influence 

  The following information is presented in a consolidated manner 

using the functional currency of each enti ty within the consolidated group. 

The exchange rates disclosed represent the rates used to convert such 

foreign currencies into the functional currency. Information on foreign 

currency financial assets and liabilities with significant impact is as 

follows:  

September 30, 2025 

   Foreign 

Currency   Exchange Rate  

 Carrying 

Amount 

 Financial Assets       

 Monetary Items       

 US Dollar     $ 27,444    30.44  (USD: TWD)     $ 835,384 

 Non-monetary 

items 

   

 

  

 Associated 

Companies 

Accounted for 

Using the Equity 

Method 

 

     

  RMB      10,885    4.273  (RMB: TWD)      46,514 

       

 Financial liabilities       

 Monetary Items       

 USD      8,717    30.44  (USD: TWD)     265,340 
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 December 31, 2024 

   Foreign 

Currency   Exchange Rate  

 Carrying 

Amount 

 Financial Assets       

 Monetary Items       

 US Dollar     $ 18,678    32.78  (USD: TWD)     $ 612,254 

 Non-monetary 

items 

   

 

  

 Associated 

Companies 

Accounted for 

Using the 

Equity 

Method 

 

     

  RMB      10,830    4.478  (RMB: TWD)      48,495 

       

 Financial 

liabilities 

      

 Monetary Items       

 USD      3,720    32.78  (USD: TWD)      121,628 

 

 September 30, 2024 

   Foreign 

Currency   Exchange Rate  

 Carrying 

Amount 

 Financial Assets       

 Monetary Items       

 US Dollar     $ 16,760    31.65  (USD: TWD)     $ 530,451 

 Non-monetary 

items 

   

 

  

 Associates 

accounted for 

using the 

equity method 

 

     

  RMB      10,731    4.525  (RMB: TWD)      48,556 

       

 Financial 

liabilities 

      

 Monetary Items       

 USD      5,190    31.65  (USD: TWD)      164,266 

 

  The consolidated company recorded net foreign exchange gains of 

NT$10,941 thousand and net foreign exchange losses of NT$5,684 

thousand for the periods from July 1 to September 30, 20 25 and 2024, 

respectively;  Foreign exchange gains and losses for the periods from 

January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024 were net foreign exchange 

losses of NT$20,867 thousand and net foreign exchange gains of 
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NT$9,600 thousand, respectively. Due to the diverse nature of foreign 

currency transactions, it  is not practicable to disclose foreign exchange 

gains and losses by each major currency.  

 35. Disclosures in the Notes  

  (1) Information on Significant Transactions:  

  1.  Loans to Others: See Schedule 1.  

  2. Guaranteeing for others:  Appendix II.  

 3.  Significant Marketable Securities Held at  Year-End (Excluding 

Investments in Subsidiaries): Appendix III.  

  4.  Transactions with related parties involving purchases or sales 

reaching NT$100 million or exceeding 20% of paid -in capital:  

Appendix IV.  

  5.  Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 mill ion or 20% 

or more of paid-in capital: Appendix V.  

  6.  Other:  Business relationships and significant transaction details 

and amounts between parent and subsidiary companies and among 

subsidiaries:  Appendix VI.  

  (2) Information on Invested Enterprises:  Appendix VII.  

  (3) Mainland China Investment Information:  

  1.  Name of Mainland investee company, principal  business activit ies,  

paid-in capital, investment method, capital remittance status,  

shareholding ratio,  investment gains/losses,  ending book value of 

investment, repatriated investment gains/losses,  and investment 

limit in Mainland China: Appendix 8.  

  2.  Significant transactions directly or indirectly conducted with 

mainland investee companies through third regions, including 

transaction prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains/losses: 

Appendices IV, V, and VI.  

  (1) Purchase amounts and percentages, along with the ending 

balances and percentages of related payables.  

  (2) Sales amounts and percentages, along with the ending 

balances and percentages of related accounts receivable.  

  (3) Amount of property transactions and the resulting profit  or 

loss.  
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  (4) The ending balances and purposes of guarantees for 

endorsed bills or collateral provided.  

  (5) The maximum outstanding balance, end-of-period balance, 

interest rate range, and total  interest for the period of the 

financing arrangement.  

  (6) Other transactions with significant impact on current period 

profit  or loss or financial position, such as provision or 

receipt  of services.  

36. Segment Information  

  Information provided to key operating decision -makers for resource 

allocation and departmental performance evaluation, focusing on the 

types of products or services delivered or provided. The reportable 

segments of the consolidated company are as follows:  

  (1) Segment Revenue and Operating Results  

  The consolidated company's revenue and operating results are 

analyzed by reportable segment as follows:  

 January 1 to September 30, 2025 

   Cable Division  

 Engineering 

Plastics Division   Total 

 Revenue from external 

customers     $ 1,594,269     $  359,211     $ 1,953,480 

 Intra-departmental 

revenue      1,081,325      97,155      1,178,480 

 Departmental Revenue      2,675,594      456,366      3,131,960 

 Internal Offsets   (   1,081,325 )    (  97,155 )    (  1,178,480 ) 

 Consolidated Revenue     $ 1,594,269     $  359,211      1,953,480 

 Departmental Profit and 

Loss     $  185,794     $  30,904      216,698 

 Director Compensation        (  2,881 ) 

 Interest Income          6,593 

 Other Income          6,408 

 Other Gains and Losses        (  22,748 ) 

 Financial expenses        (  5,367 ) 

 Share of profit (loss) of 

associates accounted for 

using the equity method          1,249 

 Pre-tax profit         $  199,952 
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January 1 to September 30, 2024  

   Cable Division  

 Engineering 

Plastics Division   Total 

 Revenue from External 

Customers     $ 1,092,811     $  418,508     $ 1,511,319 

 Intra-departmental 

revenue      736,524      78,622      815,146 

 Departmental Revenue      1,829,335      497,130     2,326,465 

 Internal Offsetting    (  736,524 )    (  78,622 )    (  815,146 ) 

 Consolidated Revenue     $ 1,092,811     $  418,508      1,511,319 

 Departmental Profit and 

Loss     $  113,830     $  25,079      138,909 

 Director Compensation        (  1,932 ) 

 Interest Income          5,794 

 Other Income          3,387 

 Other gains and losses          9,282 

 Financial Costs        (  4,203 ) 

 Share of profit (loss) of 

associates accounted for 

using the equity method          1,082 

 Pre-tax profit         $  152,319 

 

  Intercompany sales are priced at market value.  

  Segment profit  refers to the profit earned by each segment, 

excluding allocated headquarters management costs and directors ' 

remuneration, the share of profit or loss of associates accounted for 

using the equity method, other income, net foreign exchange gains 

(losses), gains or losses on valuation of financial instruments, finance 

costs, and income tax expense.  This measure is  provided to the chief 

operating decision maker for allocating resources to segments and 

assessing their performance.  

  (2) Total  Assets and Liabilities by Segment  

  

 September 30, 

2025  

 December 31, 

2024  

 September 30, 

2024 

 Department Assets        

 Connecting Line 

Department 

 

   $ 2,274,379     $ 2,034,836     $ 1,943,842 

 Engineering Plastics 

Division 

 

    372,223      365,759      364,941 

 Consolidated Total Assets    $ 2,646,602     $ 2,400,595     $ 2,308,783 

       

 Department Liabilities       

 Connectors Division    ( $  931,475 )    ( $  684,636 )    ( $  667,516 ) 

 Engineering Plastics 

Division 

 

  (  146,464 )    (  133,689 )    (  138,998 ) 
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 Total consolidated 

liabilities 

 

  ($ 1,077,939 )    ( $  818,325 )    ( $  806,514 ) 

 

   The assets of the consolidated company's operating segments are 

measured based on controllable assets. Liabili ties are allocated 

considering the company's overall funding costs and capital  al location 

needs, which are not controllable by individual operating segments. 

Therefore, they are not included in the basis for evaluating segment 

management performance.
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 VSO E lect ron ics  Co. ,  Ltd .  and  Subsid ia r i es  

 Loans  to  Others  

 Janu ary  1  to  September  3 0 ,  2025  

 Appendix  1   Uni t :  Unless  o th erwise  speci f ied  

 i s  in  thousands of  New Taiwan Dol lar s  

 

 No. 
 Company to Which 

Funds Were Loaned 
 Borrowing Entity 

 Transaction 

Item 

 

Related 

Party 

 Highest Balance 

for Current Period 

 (Notes 2 and 3) 

 Ending Balance 

 (Note 3) 

 Actual Amount 

Disbursed 

 Interest 

Rate 

Range 

 Funding 

Loans 

 Nature 

 (Note 1) 

 Business 

Transactions 

 Amount 

 Reason for 

Short-Term 

Financing 

Need 

 Provision for 

Allowance 

 Bad Debt 

Allowance 

Amount 

 Collateral 
 For individual 

borrowers 

 Loan limit 

 (Note 2) 

 Loan 

 Total Limit 

 (Note 2) 

 Remarks 
 Name  Value 

 0 VSO Electronics Co., 

LTD. 
VSO (Viet Nam) 

Electronics Co., LTD. 
 Other 

Receivables 

 －Related 

Parties 

 Yes    $  120,238 

  (USD 3,950 

thousand ) 

   $  106,540 

  (USD3,500 

thousand) 

   $  82,188 

  (USD 2,700 

thousand) 

 5.22~5.4  2    $  -  Operating 

Cash Flow 

   $  -  -    $  -    $  591,343    $  591,343  

                  

 

 Note  1 :  Th e method  for  complet ing  th e  na ture  o f  fu nds  lending  i s  a s  fo l lo ws:  

  (1 )For  busin ess  p ar tne r s ,  en t er  1 .  

  (2 )For  shor t - t erm f in an cing  needs ,  en te r  2 .  

 Note  2 :  Th e to t a l  amount  o f  loans  ex t ended  by  the  Company shal l  no t  ex ceed  40% of  the  Comp any ' s  ne t  wor th ,  and  th e  l imi t  fo r  any  ind iv idual  borrower  shal l  no t  exceed  40% of  the  Company ' s  n et  wor th .  

 Note  3 :  New Ta iwan Dol l ar  amount s  a re  conver ted  based  on  the  exch ange r a t e  a t  the  end  of  th e  per iod .  
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 VSO Elec t ro n i c s  Co . ,  L td .  an d  Su b s id i a r i e s  

 Gu a ran t ees  fo r  Oth e r s  

 Jan u a ry  1  t o  Sep t ember  3 0 ,  2 0 2 5  

 Ap p en d ix  I I   Un i t :  Un le ss  o th e rwi se  sp ec i f i ed  

 i s  i n  t h o u san d s  o f  New Ta iwan  Do l l a r s  

 

 No. 

 Name of Company 

Providing Endorsement 
Guarantee 

 Guarantee Recipient 

 For a single 
enterprise 

 Guarantee Limit 
 (Note 1) 

 Maximum 

Guarantee Balance 

for the Current 
Period 

 Balance 

 Balance at End of 

Period 
 Guarantee Balance 

 Actual Amount 

Drawn 
 (Note 3) 

 Asset-backed 

guarantee 
 Guarantee Amount 

 Ratio of 

Cumulative 
Guarantee Amount 

to Net Value in 
Latest Financial 

Statements (%) 

 Guarantee 

 Maximum Limit 
 (Note 1) 

 Parent company 

guarantees to 
 Subsidiary 

 Subsidiaries' 
 Guarantee by 

Subsidiary to 
Parent Company 

 Guarantee by 

parent company to 
 Guarantee 

 Remarks 
Company Name  Relationship 

 0  VSO Electronics Co., LTD  LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED. 

 Companies in which the 

company directly and 
indirectly holds more than 

60% of the voting shares 

   $  443,507    $  150,000     $  150,000    $  130,516     $  -  10.15%    $  1,182,687  Y  N  N  

   Hongjun Energy Co., Ltd. 

(Preparatory Office) 

(Note 2) 

 Companies in which the 

company directly and 

indirectly holds more than 

51% of the voting shares 

    443,507      30,000  

  

    30,000  

  

    -      -   2.03%     1,182,687   Y  N  N  

               

 

 No te  1 :Th e  agg reg a t e  amo un t  o f  g u a ran t ees  p ro v id ed  by  t h e  Co mp an y  and  i t s  su b s id i ar i e s  sh a l l  n o t  ex ceed  8 0 % o f  t h e  n e t  wo r th  a s  s t a t ed  i n  t h e  mo s t  recen t  f i n an c i a l  s t a t emen t s  o f  each  co mp any.  Th e  amo u n t  o f  g u a ran t ees  p ro v id ed  b y  t h e  Co mp an y  to  a  s i ng l e 

su b s id i a ry  sh a l l  n o t  ex ceed  30 % o f  t h e  n e t  wo r th  a s  s t a t ed  i n  t h e  mo s t  recen t  f i n an c ia l  s t a t emen t s  o f  su ch  sub s id i a ry.  Th e  am o un t  o f  gu a ran t ees  p ro v id ed  b y  t h e  Co mp any  to  a  s i n g l e  sub s id i a ry  i n  wh ich  th e  Co mp an y h o ld s  1 00 % o f  t h e  vo t i n g  sha re s ,  e i t h e r  

d i rec t l y  o r  i n d i rec t ly,  sh a l l  no t  ex ceed  4 0 % o f  t h e  n e t  wo r th  a s  s t a t ed  i n  th e  mo s t  recent  f i n an c i a l  s t a t emen t s  o f  su ch  su b s i d i a ry.  

 No te  2 :On  Au g u s t  11 ,  2 0 15 ,  t h e  Co mp an y ' s  Bo a rd  o f  Di r ec to rs  ap p ro v ed  t h a t ,  t o  a s s i s t  t h e  n ewly  e s t ab l i sh ed  en e rgy  su b s id i a ry  "Ho n g ju n  En e rgy  Co . ,  L td . "  i n  o b t a in ing  b ank  c red i t  f ac i l i t i e s  t o  mee t  o p e ra t i o n a l  n eed s ,Th e  Co mp an y wi l l  p ro v id e  a  g u a ran t ee  t o  

fac i l i t a t e  i t s  ap p l i ca t io n  fo r  wo rk in g  cap i t a l  and  a  l e t t e r  o f  c red i t  f ac i l i t y  f ro m Ta ip e i  Fu b o n  Bank ,  wi th  an  amo u n t  o f  NT$ 3 0 ,0 0 0  t h ou san d .  Th i s  g u a ran t ee  may  o n ly  b e  u t i l i zed  a f t e r  t h e  su b s id i a ry  i s  fo r ma l ly  e s t ab l i sh ed .  Th e  su b s id i a ry ' s  n ame  h as  b een  

re se rv ed  fo l l o win g  p re l imin ary  ap p ro v a l  by  t h e  Min i s t ry  o f  Eco n o mic  Affa i r s .  A s  o f  S ep t emb er  3 0 ,  20 1 5 ,  th e  su b s id i a ry  h as  n o t  y e t  b een  e s t ab l i sh ed .  

 No te  3 :New Ta iwan  Do l l a r  amo u n t s  a re  co n v e r t ed  b ased  o n  t h e  c lo s in g  ex ch ang e  ra t e .  
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 VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  and Subsidiaries  

 Significant Marketable Securities Held at Period -End 

 September 30, 2025 

 Appendix III   Unit: Unless otherwise specified,  

 in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

 Company Held  Type and Name of Securities 
 Relationship with the 

Issuer of the Securities 
 Accounting Item 

 Year-end 

 Remarks  Number of 

Shares/Units 
 Book Value 

 

Shareholding 

Ratio (%) 

 Fair Value 

 VSO Electronics Co., LTD.  Bonds with Repurchase Option        

   P13 China Life 1A (Note 1)  None  Cash and Cash Equivalents    -    $ 281,719  -    $ 281,719  

         

 

 Note 1:  The collateral  for the repurchase agreement bonds is Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 's 20 24 Series 1 Unsecured Cumulative Subordinated Senior Corporate Bonds.  

 Note 2:  Disclosure is based on significant intercompany transactions exceeding 1% of total assets.  
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 VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  and Subsidiaries  

 Transactions with related parties involving purchases or sales reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid -in capital  

 January 1 to September 30, 2025  

 Appendix IV  Unit: NT$ thousand 

 

 Purchases (Sales) 

 Company 

 Transaction 

Counterparty Name 

 

Relationsh

ip 

 Transaction Details 

 Transaction Conditions Differing from 

Standard Transactions 

 Circumstances and Reasons 

 Notes Receivable (Payable), 

Accounts Receivable (Payable) 

 Remarks 

 Purchases 

(Sales) 
 Amount 

 Percentage 

of Total 

Purchases 

(Sales) 

 of Total 

Purchases 

(Sales) 

 Credit Period  Unit Price  Credit Period  Balance 

 Percentage of 

Total Notes 

and Accounts 

Receivable/Pa

yable 

 Ratio 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

Ji'an VSO Electronics 

Co., Ltd. 

 

Subsidiary 

 Purchases    $ 660,039     71%  Monthly 

Settlement 60 Days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －   ( $ 212,270 )   (  73% )  － 

 Ji'an VSO Electronics 

Co., Ltd 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 Parent 

Company 

 Sales   ( 660,039 )   (  69% )  Monthly 

settlement 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －     212,270     63%  － 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

VSO (Viet Nam) 

Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 

Subsidiary 

 Purchases     206,046    22%  Monthly 

settlement: 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －   (  67,098 )   (  23% )  － 

VSO (Viet Nam) 

Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 Parent 

Company 

 Sales   ( 206,046 )   (  80% )  Monthly 

settlement 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －     67,098     86%  － 

 VSO Electronics 

(Suzhou) Co., LTD. 

Co., Ltd. 

VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 Brother 

Company 

 Purchasing     126,507     63%  Monthly 

Settlement 60 Days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －   (  39,793 )   (  62% )  － 

 VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd. 

 VSO Electronics 

(Suzhou) Co., LTD. 

Co., Ltd. 

 Brother 

Company 

 

Sales/Invento

ry 

  ( 126,507 )   (  13% )  Monthly 

settlement 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －     39,793     12%  － 

 Zhangjiagang Free 

Trade Zone 

Linkupon Material 

Trading Limited 

Company 

 LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED 

 Parent 

Company 

 Purchasing     97,155    45%  Monthly 

settlement: 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －   (  27,518 )   (  49% )  － 

LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED 

  Zhangjiagang Free 

Trade Zone 

Linkupon Material 

Trading Limited 

Company 

 

Subsidiary 

 Sales   (  97,155 )   (  44% )  Monthly 

settlement 60 days 

 Pricing based on 

internal transfer 

method 

 －     27,518     51%  － 

            

 

 Note: Transactions between consolidated companies have been fully eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statemen ts.  
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 VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  and Subsidiaries  

 Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid -in capital  

 September 30, 2025 

 Appendix V  Unit: Unless otherwise specified,  

 in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

 Company with accounts 

receivable recorded 

 Transaction Counterparty 

Name 
 Relationship 

 Balance due from 

related parties 

 Balance (Note) 

 Turnover 

Rate 

 Overdue Receivables from Related 

Parties 

 Amounts 

Receivable from 

Related Parties 

 Amounts 

Recovered After 

Period 

 Allowance 

Provision 

 Loss Amount  Amount 
 Disposition 

Method 

 Ji'an VSO Electronics Co., Ltd  VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  Parent Company    $ 212,270  4.90    $  -  －    $  -    $  - 

         

         

 

 Note: Transactions between consolidated companies have been fully eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial  statements.  
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 VSO Electronics Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries  

 Business Relationships and Significant Transactions Between Parent and Subsidiary Companies and Among Subsidiaries, Including  Amounts  

 January 1 to September 30, 2025  

 Appendix VI  Unit: Unless otherwise specified,  

 in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

 No. 

 (Note 1) 
 Transaction Counterparty Name  Transaction Counterparty 

 Relationship 

with 

Counterparty 

 Relationship 

(Note 2) 

 Transaction History 

 Account  Amount  Transaction Terms 

 Percentage of 

Consolidated Total 

Revenue or 

 Total Assets (%) 

 0  VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  Ji'an VSO Electronics Co., Ltd.  1  Accounts Payable - Related 

Parties 

   $ 212,270  Monthly settlement within 60 

days 

 8% 

     Purchases     660,039  Note 4  34% 

  VSO (Viet Nam) Electronics Co., Ltd.   1  Accounts Payable - Related 

Parties 

    67,098  Monthly settlement within 60 

days 

 3% 

     Purchases     206,046  Note 4  11% 

   VSO Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.  1  Purchases     14,512  Note 4  1% 

 1 Ji'an VSO Electronics Co., Ltd  VSO Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.  3  Accounts Receivable - Related 

Parties 

    39,793  Monthly settlement 60 days  2% 

     Sales Revenue     126,507  Note 4  6% 

  VSO (Viet Nam) Electronics Co., Ltd.  3  Sales     74,221  Note 4  4% 

 2 LINKUPON INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED 

 Zhangjiagang Free Trade Zone 

Linkupon Material Trading Limited 

Company 

 3  Accounts Receivable - Related 

Parties 

    27,518  Monthly settlement within 60 

days 

 1% 

     Sales     97,155  Note 4  5% 

 

 Note 1: Transactions between the parent company and its  subsidiaries should be separately indicated in the reference number c olumn. The reference number should be filled in as 

follows:  

 1.   Parent company enters 0.  

 2.   Subsidiaries shall  be numbered sequentially start ing from 1 by company.  

 Note 2:  The relationship with the counterparty falls into one of the following three categories; simply indicate the type:  

1.   Parent company to subsidiary.  

 2.   Subsidiary to parent company.  

 3.   Subsidiary to subsidiary.  

 Note 3:  All of the above transactions have been fully eliminated.  

 Note 4:  In accordance with the Group's transfer pricing policy system.  

 Note 5:  Disclosure is based on significant intercompany transactions reaching 1% or more of consolidated revenue or total  ass ets.  
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 VSO Elec t ro n i c s  Co . ,  L td .  an d  Su b s id i a r i e s  

 In fo rma t io n  o n  i n v es t ee  comp an ie s ,  l o ca t io n  reg ion s ,  e tc .  

 J an u a ry  1  t o  Sep t ember  3 0 ,  2 0 2 5  

 Ap p en d ix  VII   Un i t :  Un le ss  o th e rwi se  sp ec i f i ed  

 i s  i n  t h o u san d s  o f  New Ta iwan  Do l l a r s  

 

 Investor Company Name  Name of Investee Company  Location  Principal Business Activities 

 Original Investment Amount  End-of-Period Holding 

 Investee Company 
 Net Profit for the Period 

 Net Investment Income 

Recognized for the 
Period 

 Net Investment Income 

 Remarks 
 End of Current Period  Previous Period End  Number of Shares  Ratio  Book Value 

 VSO Electronics Co., 
Ltd. 

 Cable Garden Holdings Limited  Samoa  Investment Holding Business    $  314,786    $  314,786    10,224,804  100%    $  444,067    $  17,228     $  16,299   Notes 1 and 3 

  LINKUPON INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED. 

 Taiwan  Sales of Engineering Plastics for Optical 

Vehicle-Mounted 3C Products 

    90,000     90,000    9,000,000  60%     135,455     26,532     15,919   Note 3 

  Vsovn Electronics (HANOI) 

Company Limited 

 Vietnam  Production and sales of various smart 

IoT, cloud, industrial control, medical, 

and automotive connection cables 

    208,971 

  ( USD 6,500 thousand) 

   159,606 

  ( USD 5,000 thousand) 

   -  100%     177,518   (  4,404 ) 

  ( VND  3,651,755 

thousand ) 

  (  4,404 ) 

  ( VND  3,651,755 

thousand) 

 Note 3 

 Cable Garden Holdings 

Limited 

VSO (Viet Nam) Electronics Co., 

LTD. Co., Ltd. 

 Vietnam  Production and sales of various smart 

IoT, cloud, industrial control, medical, 

and automotive cables 

    60,847 

  (USD 2,000 thousand ) 

    60,847 

  (USD 2,000 thousand ) 

   -  100%     61,265   (  13,527 ) 

  ( VND  11,217,252 

thousand ) 

  (  13,545 ) 

  ( VND  11,233,071 

thousand ) 

 Notes 2 and 3 

  Cleveland Investments Limited  Samoa  Investment holding business     56,101     56,101    1,700,000  100%     95,244    9,094      9,094  Note 3 

 LINKUPON 

INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED 

 Linkupon International Holdings, 

Limited 
 Samoa  Investment holding business     71,444     71,444    2,407,795  100%     150,006     9,123      9,123   Note 3 

            

 

 No te  1 :  In v es tmen t  l o ss  re co g n ized  a s  o f  Sep t emb er  3 0 ,  2 0 2 5  rep re sen t s  t h e  rev e rs a l  o f  u n rea l i zed  g ro ss  p ro f i t  f ro m  co u n te r - f l o w t ran sac t i o n s  a t  t h e  b eg in nin g  o f  t h e  p e r io d  amo u n t in g  t o  NT$ 2 ,80 0  t h o u san d ,  p lu s  u n rea l i zed  g ro ss  p ro f i t  f ro m 

co u n te r - f l o w t ran sac t i o n s  a t  t h e  en d  o f  t h e  p e r io d  amou n t in g  t o  NT$ 3 ,7 2 9  t h ou san d ;  the  ca r ry in g  v a lu e  i s  red u ced  by  u n rea l i zed  g a in s  f ro m p ro - f l o w t ran sac t i o n s  amo u nt in g  to  NT$ 1 ,0 4 9  t h ou san d .  

 No te  2 :  In v es tmen t  g a in s  reco g n ized  a s  o f  Sep t emb er  3 0 ,  2 0 25 ,  rep re sen t  th e  rev e rsa l  o f  u n rea l i zed  g ro ss  p ro f i t  f ro m s id e -s t ream t ran sac t i o n s  a t  t h e  b eg inn ing  o f  th e  p e r iod  amo u n t ing  to  NT$ 4  th ou san d ,  p lu s  un rea l i zed  g ro ss  p ro f i t  f ro m s id e -s t ream  

t ran sac t i o n s  a t  t h e  en d  o f  t h e  p e r io d  amo un t in g  t o  NT$ 2 2  th o u sand .  

 No te  3 :  Wh en  p rep a r in g  t h e  co n so l i d a t ed  f i n an ci a l  s t a t emen t s ,  t h e  ca r ry in g  amo un t  of  l o n g - t e rm eq u i ty  i nv es tment s ,  r eco g n ized  in v es tmen t  ga in s  o r  l o sse s ,  an d  t h e  i nv es t ee  co mp an y ' s  p ro f i t  o r  l o ss  h ave  b een  fu l l y  e l i min a t ed .  

 No te  4 :  Fo r  i n fo rma t io n  reg a rd in g  i n ves t ee s  i n  ma in l an d  Ch in a ,  p l ea se  re fe r  t o  Ap p en d ix  VII I .  
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 VSO Elec t ro n i c s  Co . ,  L td .  an d  Su b s id i a r i e s  

 Ma in l and  Ch in a  In v es tmen t  In fo rma t io n  

 Jan u a ry  1  t o  Sep t ember  3 0 ,  2 0 2 5  

 Ap p en d ix  8   Un i t :  Un le ss  o th e rwi se  sp ec i f i ed  

 i s  i n  t h o u san d s  o f  New Ta iwan  Do l l a r s  

 

 Name of Mainland Investee 

Company 

 Principal Business 

Activities 
 Paid-in Capital 

 Investment 

Method 

 Beginning of Current 

Period 

 Remitted from Taiwan 
 Cumulative 

Investment Amount 

 Investment Amount Remitted or Recovered 

During the Current Period  End of Current Period 
 Remitted from Taiwan 

 Cumulative 
Investment Amount 

 Investee Company 

 Current Period Profit 
or Loss 

 Direct or 

indirect 
investments by 

the Company 
 Equity 

Interest 

 Net Investment Income 

Recognized for the 

Period 
 Net Investment Income 

 (Note 1) 

 Book value of 
investment at end of 

period 
 Book Value 

 Cumulative 
Investment Income 

 Repatriated 
Investment Income 

 Remarks 

 Remitted  Recovered 

 Ji'an VSO Electronics Co., 

Ltd 

 Production and sales of 

various smart IoT, cloud, 
industrial control, 

medical, and automotive 

connection cables 

   $  175,176 

  (USD 2,800 thousand 
 and RMB  17,600 

thousand yuan) 

 Notes 4 and 7   $  83,052 

 ( USD2,800 thousand ) 

   $  -    $  -    $  83,052 

(USD 2,800 thousand) 

   $  20,742 

 (RMB 4,802 thousand 
yuan) 

 100%    $  20,742 

 ( RMB 4,802 thousand 
yuan ) 

 (Note 1 (2) 2.) 

   $  301,163 

 (RMB 70,480 
thousand yuan ) 

   $  44,000 

 (  RMB  10,000 
thousand yuan ) 

 

 VSO Electronics (Suzhou) 

Co., Ltd. 

 Production and sales of 

various smart IoT, cloud, 

industrial control, 
medical, and automotive 

connection cables 

    56,101 

 (USD1,700 thousand )  

 Notes 6 and 7     56,101 

 (USD 1,700 thousand ) 

    -     -     56,101 

(USD 1,700 thousand) 

    9,094 

 (RMB 2,105 thousand) 

 100% 

 

    9,094 

( RMB 2,105 thousand 

yuan ) 
 (Note 1 (2) 2.) 

    95,237 

 (  RMB  22,288 

thousand yuan ) 

    35,200 

 (  RMB  8,000 

thousand yuan ) 

 

 Zhangjiagang Free Trade 
Zone Linkupon Material 

Trading Limited Company 

 Sales of Engineering 
Plastics for Optical and 

Automotive 3C 

Applications 

    53,095 
 ( USD1,400 thousand 

yuan) 

 Notes 5 and 7     56,046 
 (USD1,724 thousand) 

    -     -     56,046 
 (USD1,724thousand ) 

    7,953 
 ( RMB 1,841 thousand 

yuan) 

 60%     4,772 
 (  RMB 1,104 thousand 

yuan ) 

 (Note 1 (2) 2.) 

    103,492 
 (  RMB  24,220 

thousand yuan ) 

    30,800 
 (  RMB  7,000 

thousand yuan ) 

 

 Zhang Jia Gang Free Trade 

Zone Mitsui LinkUpon 

Advanced Material, Inc. 

 Production and Sales of 

Engineering Plastic 

Composite Materials 

    190,371 

 ( USD 5,690thousand )  

 Note 5    50,066 

 ( USD 1,739thousand ) 

    - 

 

    -     50,066 

 (USD 1,739 thousand) 

    5,203 

 ( RMB 1,205 thousand 

yuan ) 

 24%     1,249 

 (  RMB 289 thousand 

yuan ) 
 (Note 1 (2) 3.) 

    46,514 

(  RMB  10,885 

thousand yuan ) 

    4,144 

(  RMB 930 thousand 

yuan ) 

 

 

 Cumulative amount remitted from Taiwan to the Mainland 
during the current period 

 to the Mainland Region 

 Investment Commission, Ministry of Economic Affairs 

 Approved Investment Amount (Note 2) 

 Limits on Investment in Mainland China as Specified by 

the Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic 

Affairs 
 Investment Limit for Mainland China (Note 3) 

 $245,265  $ 337,389  $ 941,197 
 

 No te  1 :  In  t h e  "Reco g n ized  In v es tmen t  Ga in s /Lo sses  fo r  t h e  Pe r io d "  co lu mn :  

 (1 ) I f  t h e  i n v es tmen t  i s  i n  the  p rep a ra to ry  s t ag e  an d  n o  i nv es tmen t  g a in  o r  l o ss  h as  b een  reco g n ized ,  t h i s  sh ou ld  b e  n o t ed .  

 (2 )Th e  b as i s  fo r  reco g n iz ing  i n v es tmen t  g a in s  o r  l o sse s  fa l l s  i n to  t h e  fo l l o wing  t h ree  ca t eg o r i e s ,  wh ich  sh ou ld  b e  sp ec i f i ed .  

 1 .  F in an c i a l  s t a t emen t s  rev i ewed  b y  an  in t e rn a t i on a l  acco u n t in g  f i rm wi th  a  co o p e ra t iv e  re l a t i o n sh ip  wi th  t h e  In s t i t u t e  o f  Ce r t i f i ed  Pu b l i c  Accou n tan t s  o f  t h e  Rep ub l i c  o f  Ch in a .  

 2 .  F in an c i a l  s t a t emen t s  rev i ewed  b y  t h e  ce r t i fy ing  accoun tan t  o f  t h e  Ta iwan ese  p a ren t  co mp any.  

 3 .  Based  o n  t h e  i nv es t ee  comp an y ' s  u n aud i t ed  f i n an c i a l  s t a t emen t s  fo r  t h e  same  p e r io d .  

 No te  2 :  Th e  in v es tmen t  amo u n t  ap p ro v ed  b y  th e  In v es tmen t  Co mmiss io n  o f  t h e  Mini s t ry  o f  Eco n o mic  Affa i r s  i s  USD1 0 ,4 7 9 ,4 0 5 .5 5 ,  ca l cu l a t ed  b ased  on  t h e  o r ig in a l  remi t t an ce  ex ch an g e  ra t e .  

 No te  3 :  Ca l cu la t ed  based  on  t h e  l imi t  o f  6 0 % o f  t h e  co nso l i d a t ed  n e t  wo r th  a s  s t i p u la t ed  i n  Le t t e r  No .  0 97 0 46 0 468 0  i s su ed  by  t h e  In v es tmen t  Co mmiss io n .  

 No te  4 :  Rep resen t s  i n ves tmen t s  i n  ma in l an d  Chin a  co mpan ie s  mad e  b y  Cab le  Gard en  Ho ld in g  L imi t ed ,  a  t h i rd - reg io n  en t i ty  wh o l ly  o wn ed  b y  t he  co mp any.  

No te  5 :  Th i s  i s  a  ma in l an d  Ch in a  co mp an y  in v es t ed  in  b y  L in k u po n  In t e rn a t i o n a l  Ho ld in g s ,  L imi t ed ,  a  t h i rd - reg io n  en t i t y  wh o l ly  o wn ed  b y  LIN K UPON INTER NAT ION AL L IM ITED. ,  wh ich  i s  6 0 % o wned .  

 No te  6 :  Th i s  i s  a  ma in l an d  Ch in a  co mp an y  in v es t ed  i n  by  Gen  En e rg y  In v es tmen t  Co . ,  L td . ,  a  t h i rd - reg io n  co mp any  wh o l ly  o wn ed  b y  th e  Gro u p.  

 No te  7 :  Fu l l y  e l imin a t ed  u po n  p rep a ra t i o n  o f  t h e  co n so l id a t ed  f i n an ci a l  s t a t emen t s .  

 

 


